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A free translation from Portuguese into English of Independent Auditor’s Report on financial statements prepared in
Brazilian currency in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil

Independent auditor’s report on individual and consolidated financial
statements

To the
Shareholders, Board of Directors and Officers of
EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Opinion

We have audited the individual and consolidated financial statements of EBES Sistemas de Energia
S.A. (the “Company”), identified as individual and consolidated, respectively, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020 and the statements of profit or loss, of
comprehensive income (loss), of changes in equity, and of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
individual and consolidated financial position of EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A. as at December 31,
2020, and its individual and consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the individual and consolidated financial statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant ethical principles set
forth in the Code of Professional Ethics for Accountants, the professional standards issued by Brazil’s
National Association of State Boards of Accountancy (CFC) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
an individual opinion on these matters For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter, including any commentary on the findings or outcome of our procedures, is
provided in that context.
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 We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
individual and consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Issue of debentures

As described in Note 19, the subsidiary Francisco Sá II Geração de Energia S.A. issued
nonconvertible debentures on March 9, 2020, totaling R$50,000 thousand. The debentures were
issued to make the investments necessary for implementation of photovoltaic generation plants and
for settlement of the debit balance of the subsidiary’s loans and financing.

The debentures have automatic early maturity clauses if the subsidiary does not comply with any of
the conditions provided for in the issuing instrument, among which is nonpayment of the obligations
thereunder, extinction and discontinuance of activities, default of any financial obligation assumed by
the subsidiary, substantial change in the subsidiary's business purpose, among others.

The monitoring of this matter was considered significant for our audit due to the materiality of the
amounts recorded by the Company and its subsidiary, the measurement of financial instruments in the
financial statements, and the assessment of compliance with covenants.

How our audit addressed this matter:

Our audit procedures included, among others; (i) the confirmation of outstanding balances with the
trustee as of December 31, 2020, (ii) the recalculation of interest, and (iii) comparison of the amounts
recorded with the debenture indenture and with the corporate documents duly approved by the
respective agencies. We also confirmed that the allocation of funds raised occurred in accordance
with the purpose described in the issue indenture. Finally, we focused on the adequacy of the
disclosures made by the Company on the issue of these debentures and their classification in current
and noncurrent liabilities.

Based on the results of the audit procedures carried out, which are consistent with management's
assessment, we considered the measurement policies of the Company's financial instruments
resulting from the issue of debentures to be acceptable, as well as the information disclosed in Note
19, in the context of the individual and consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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Measurement of the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment

As disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the Company's property, plant and equipment
balance totaled R$155,888 thousand in the consolidated statements, which corresponds substantially
to solar machines and equipment acquired for the construction of photovoltaic generation units (solar
farms). This asset is subject to periodic assessment as to the existence of impairment indicators,
which were observed in the current year. Assessment of recoverable amount involves significant
judgment to determine the assumptions used in the cash flow projections, which include discount and
growth rates.

This matter was considered significant for our audit considering that the process of evaluating the
recoverability of these assets is complex and involves a high degree of subjectivity, and also because
it is based on various assumptions and estimates, the realization of which is affected by market
projections and uncertain economic scenarios, which can lead to significant variations in the definition
of the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and, consequently, in the amount
recorded in the financial statements.

How our audit addressed this matter

Our audit procedures included the following, among others: (i) comparison of the previous year's
projections with the respective results made in the current year, as a way of assessing the
effectiveness of the business plans and the level of confirmation of the projections made previously;
(ii) tests of additions, write-offs, reclassifications, recalculation of depreciation; and (iii) analysis of the
process and controls implemented by management to identify indications of impairment of assets with
a defined useful life, when applicable, including controls over management's review of significant
assumptions underlying the determination of the cash-generating unit's recoverable amount. We also
reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in the notes to the individual and consolidated
financial statements.

Based on the result of the audit procedures carried out on the measurement of the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment, which is consistent with management's assessment, we
considered that the criteria and assumptions for measurement of the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment adopted by management, as well as the respective disclosures in Note 13 are
acceptable, in the context of the individual and consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the individual and
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual and consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the individual and consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and its subsidiaries’
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the individual and consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the individual and consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Brazilian and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the individual and consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ internal control.

 Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Concluded on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the individual and consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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 Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the individual and consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identified during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Campinas, April 14, 2021.

ERNST & YOUNG
Auditores Independentes S.S.
CRC-2SP034519/O-6

Cristiane Cléria S. Hilário
Accountant CRC-1SP243766/O-8
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A free translation from Portuguese into English of financial statements prepared in Brazilian currency in accordance with
accounting practices adopted in Brazil

EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Statements of financial position
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais)

Individual Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 18,592 1,128 26,580 20,192
Short-term investments 5 643 - 830 -
Trade accounts receivable 6 2,150 130 16,105 5,887
Financial instruments 7 831 - 831 -
Taxes recoverable 8 1,155 1,469 1,262 1,493
Other assets 9 621 323 2,101 2,655

23,992 3,050 47,709 30,227

Assets from discontinued operations 10 7,782 15,435 7,782 15,435
Total current assets 31,774 18,485 55,491 45,662

Noncurrent assets
Restricted cash 5 1,586 1,962 8,407 16,057
Related parties 11 28,691 26,160 1,259 973
Judicial deposits 12 108 152 108 152
Other assets 9 7,118 - 7,118 -
Investments 13 64,844 59,944 - 91
Property, plant and equipment 14 5,383 22,346 155,888 183,725
Right-of-use assets 15 826 - 11,709 -
Intangible assets 16 1,392 13,550 16,626 14,939

109,945 124,117 201,112 215,940

Total assets 141,719 142,602 256,603 261,602
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Individual Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payable 17 4,714 5,882 4,983 7,262
Loans and financing 18 22,938 11,217 27,781 50,507
Debentures 19 - - 6,653 -
Lease liabilities 15 604 - 1,906 -
Labor obligations and related charges 20 6,784 5,426 6,784 5,426
Tax obligations 437 659 2,228 4,179
Other liabilities 400 2,168 400 2,168

35,877 25,352 50,735 69,542

Noncurrent liabilities
Loans and financing 18 23,701 1,885 70,285 76,714
Debentures 19 - - 43,559 -
Lease liabilities 15 254 - 10,139 -
Share-based payments 21 5,689 405 5,689 405
Provision for losses on subsidiaries 13 2 19 - -
Provision for contingencies 12 - 3 - 3
Total noncurrent liabilities 29,646 2,312 129,672 77,122

Equity
Capital 22 196,369 196,369 196,369 196,369
Capital reserves 603 603 603 603
Goodwill reserve 945 1,164 945 1,164
Accumulated losses (121,721) (83,198) (121,721) (83,198)
Total equity 76,196 114,938 76,196 114,938

Total liabilities and equity 141,719 142,602 256,603 261,602

See accompanying notes.
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EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Statements of profit or loss
Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais)

Individual Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Net operating revenue 23 2,918 19,148 47,464 22,619

Cost of products sold and services rendered 24 (3,343) (17,353) (12,042) (9,432)

Gross profit (loss) (425) 1,795 35,422 13,187

Other operating income (expenses)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 24 (44,020) (27,267) (51,574) (29,616)
Other operating expenses, net 24 (823) 174 (843) 135
Equity pickup 13 10,726 2,406 - -

(34,117) (24,687) (52,417) (29,481)

Loss before finance income (costs) (34,542) (22,892) (16,995) (16,294)

Finance income 25 4,444 4,030 4,026 2,900
Finance costs 25 (6,409) (2,438) (18,583) (6,287)

(1,965) 1,592 (14,557) (3,387)

Loss before income and social contribution taxes (36,507) (19,681) (31,552) (19,681)

Income and social contribution taxes 26 - - (4,955) (1,619)

Loss for the year from continuing operations (36,507) (21,300) (36,507) (21,300)

Discontinued operations 10 (2,017) (3,310) (2,017) (3,310)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations (2,017) (3,310) (2,017) (3,310)

Loss for the year (38,524) (24,610) (38,524) (24,610)

See accompanying notes.
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EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Statements of comprehensive income (loss)
Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais)

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Loss for the year (38,524) (24,610) (38,524) (24,610)

Comprehensive income (loss) for the year (38,524) (24,610) (38,524) (24,610)

See accompanying notes.
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EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Statements of changes in equity
Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais)

Subscribed
capital

Capital
reserves

Goodwill
reserve

Accumulated
losses Total equity

Balances at December 31, 2018 157,017 - 2,211 (58,588) 100,640

Capital increase (Note 22) 39,352 - - - 39,352
Amortization of goodwill (Notes 16 and 22) - - (1,047) - (1,047)
Increase in reserves (Note 22) - 603 - - 603
Loss for the year - - - (24,610) (24,610)

Balances at December 31, 2019 196,369 603 1,164 (83,198) 114,938

Amortization of goodwill (Notes 16 and 22) - - (219) - (219)
Loss for the year - - - (38,523) (38,523)

Balances at December 31, 2020 196,369 603 945 (121,721) 76,196

See accompanying notes.
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EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A.

Statements of cash flows
Years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais)

Individual Consolidated
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (38,524) (24,610) (38,524) (24,610)
Adjustments to reconcile loss for the year to net cash flows

used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 24 1,000 489 9,725 2,435
Equity pickup 13 (10,726) (2,406) - -
Residual value of property, plant and equipment written off 14 466 127 15,189 118
Loss on disposal of investments 612 - 91 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 10 (12) 317 (12) 317
Provision for inventory losses 10 77 237 77 237
Provision for losses on PP&E 42 - 42 -
Provision for realization of taxes recoverable 10 (28) 184 (28) 184
Share-based payment 5,284 405 5,284 405
Provision for contingencies 12 - 3 - 3

Interest on loans, financing, debentures and lease liabilities 18 5,818 893 14,151 5,592
Validation of operating assets and liabilities

Trade accounts receivable (561) (5,803) (8,759) (1,028)
Restricted cash 5 (266) (1,962) 6,819 (9,575)
Inventories 3,195 4,193 3,195 4,193
Taxes recoverable 3,072 (2,191) 2,989 (2,197)
Judicial deposits 46 (3) 46 (3)
Financial instruments (831) - (831) -
Other receivables 3,220 30 4,072 (2,141)
Trade accounts payable (1,167) (2,142) (2,279) (1,711)
Labor obligations 1,358 1,088 1,358 1,080
Taxes payable (222) 555 3,006 5,260
Contingencies - payments (3) (8) (3) (287)
Advances from customers (1,767) (3,270) (1,767) (3,270)
Related parties 23,509 - (287) (148)
Dividends received 2,649 760 - -
Interest on loans, financing, leases and debentures (1,693) (492) (7,935) (4,738)
Income and social contribution taxes paid - - (4,955) (1,619)

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (5,452) (33,606) 664 (31,503)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 14 and 16 (6,525) (26,876) (21,710) (104,662)
Investments in subsidiaries 13 (10,729) (14,217) - -
Amount received from disposal of subsidiaries/assets 13 13,277 - 13,277 -
Investments in associates 13 - (91) - (49)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,977) (41,184) (8,433) (104,711)
Cash flows from financing activities
Intercompany loans (1,840) 8,887 - -
Loans and financing raised 18 60,088 4,224 60,088 88,977
Repayment of loans and financing 18 (30,675) - (93,653) -
Issue of debentures 19 - - 48,408 -
Payment of lease liabilities (principal) 15 (680) - (686) -
Capital payment 22 - 39,351 - 39,351
Capital reserves - 669 - 669
Net cash flows from financing activities 26,893 53,131 14,157 128,997
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,464 (21,659) 6,388 (7,217)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4 1,128 22,787 20,192 27,409
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 18,592 1,128 26,580 20,192
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,464 (21,659) 6,388 (7,217)

See accompanying notes.
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1. Operations

EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A. (“Company” or “EBES”), established on February 17, 2011, is
primarily engaged in provision of development, advisory and engineering services in projects
involving thermal, mechanic and solar energy systems and electromechanical equipment, as well
as commercial representation, distribution, import, export, manufacture, sale, installation, civil
construction works, and maintenance and rental of equipment for energy systems.

The Company holds interest in other entities, participates in projects relating to its business
purpose, in the form of consortia, condominiums or cooperatives and/or other legal structures that
have no distinct corporate personality, and structures and takes part in distributed energy
generation projects relating to the Net Metering System regulated by Brazilian Electricity
Regulatory Agency (ANEEL).

The main office of the Company is located at Av. Alexander Graham Bell, 200, Bloco D, Módulo.
D.04, Techno Park, Campinas, state of São Paulo, and its corporate name is Órigo Energia.

The Company continuously seeks business opportunities in various renewable energy segments
and currently has two major business lines:

 Special Projects - project design and development, sale of Photovoltaic Solar Energy Generator
(GSF) and respective installation for the end customer, either individuals or legal entities. This
business unit usually involves highly complex and challenging engineering projects.

 Solar Farm - construction of Photovoltaic Power Plants (UFV) for sale of distributed generation
to various customers, individuals or small entities. As from 2020, the organization engages in
the sale and in management of UFV customers or of plants using renewable energy sources of
third parties.

Between 2019 and 2020, the Company closed two business lines, described below, in order to
focus its business on the business lines mentioned above. These lines are presented as
discontinued operations in Note 10:

 Rooftop - comprises project design and development, sale of Photovoltaic Solar Power
Generators (GSF) and respective installation for the end customer, either individuals or legal
entities.

 KIT - comprises sale and distribution of GSFs to corporate customers (integrators). The
integrator is the company that installs the GSF for its end customers.
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1. Operations (Continued)

EBES continued to invest in new solar power generation plants in 2020, serving approximately 7
thousand customers in the state of Minas Gerais, with own farms. The Company is also operating
in other states, such as Pernambuco and Ceará. In 2020, eight photovoltaic plants were in
operation whereas the others were in pre-operational phase. When these photovoltaic plants
enter into operation, the Company expects to achieve operating income (expenses) balance.
Additionally, the Company has already begun building new photovoltaic plants (UFV) and
prospecting other locations for new plants to be built.

The Company has branches in Sumaré (SP), São Paulo (SP), where the financial office is
located, and in Mombaca (Ceará state). In 2020, the warehouse in Sumaré became
nonoperational in view of the discontinuation of the Rooftop and Kit lines of business, and the
branch is currently in the process of discontinuation.

The Company has control over other companies, whose operations are summarized as follows:

 Finco Assessoria Financeira Eireli (“Finco”) is mainly engaged in rendering financial advisory
services for financing, consultancy services in general, both in power generation projects
through renewable sources and energy efficiency, in addition to holding interest in other entities,
either as a member or a shareholder. This company did not operate in 2020 and holds interest
in other companies of the Group.

 Companies primarily engaged in developing, studying, implementing, operating and exploring
solar power plants, as well as developing activities directly or indirectly relating to performance
of these electric power generation activities, including sale, lease, rental or any other form of
provision of energy generation assets:

- In 2020, the following companies were operational: João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. (0.99 MWac),
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (5 MWac), Francisco SA II Geração de Energia
Solar Ltda. (15 MWac), Manga I Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (5 MWac) and Janaúba II
Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (5 MWac). Additionally, the site João Pinheiro at the company
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Sola Ltda. (75 kWac) was also operational.
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Notes to individual and consolidated financial statements (Continued)
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1. Operations (Continued)

- In 2020, the following companies are pre-operational: Mato Verde Geração de Energia Solar
Ltda., São Francisco III Geração de Energia Solar Ltda., Várzea da Palma Curumatai Geração
de Energia Solar Ltda., Barreiro Geração de Energia Solar 21 Ltda., Buriti Geração de Energia
Solar 25 Ltda., Capim Branco Geração de Energia Solar 15 Ltda., Irai de Minas Geração de
Energia Solar 19 Ltda., Lagoa Grande Geração de Energia Solar 22 Ltda., Lambari Geração
de Energia Solar 20 Ltda., Santa Rosa Geração de Energia Solar 14 Ltda., São Bento
Geração de Energia Solar 17 Ltda., Três Reis Geração de Energia Solar 18 Ltda.,
Marimbondo Geração de Energia Solar 23 Ltda., Cruzeiro Geração de Energia Solar 24 Ltda.,
Campestre Geração de Energia Solar 16 Ltda., Papagaio Geração de Energia 26 Ltda., Frutal
Geração de Energia 27 Ltda., Pimenta Geração de Energia 28 Ltda., Six Energy
Desenvolvimento de Negócios Ltda. São Gotardo Geração De Energia 32 Ltda., Piumhi
Geração De Energia 33 Ltda., Melgaço Geração De Energia 31 Ltda., Terra Vista II Geração
De Energia 30 Ltda., Santa Martha Geração De Energia 29 Ltda., Ponte Alta Geração De
Energia 34 Ltda., Poutrinha Geração De Energia 37 Ltda., Três Amores Geração De Energia
36 Ltda., Jacaúna Geração De Energia 35 Ltda., Vertentes Geração De Energia 39 Ltda.,
Petrolina Geração De Energia 38 Ltda., Parnamirim Geração De Energia 40 Ltda., Princesa
Dos Canaviais Geração De Energia 41 Ltda., Campos Novos Geração De Energia 42 Ltda.,
Bananal Geração De Energia Solar 46 Ltda.

- EBES Administradora de Consórcio Ltda. (“EBES Administradora”) is primarily engaged in
general management of distributed generation consortiums, under the shared power generation
type, as regulated by Aneel, including all acts inherent in this role. This subsidiary began
operating in 2017 and holds interest in other companies of the Group.

Subsidiary EBES Administradora is the leader and administrator of the consortiums, holding
interest jointly with other consortium members, participating in the Net Metering System - shared
generation type - relating to power that will be generated by the Group companies that have a
power plant from solar or renewable sources.

In 2020, Cooperativa Origo Geração Distribuída (COGD) was established for the purpose of
participating in the Net Metering System - shared generation type - relating to power that will be
generated by the Group companies that have a power plant from solar or renewable sources. The
Cooperative was organized to serve individuals.

These consortia or cooperatives entered into asset and lease agreements with companies with
UFV for a period of approximately 25 years.

In December 2020, the consortia and cooperatives formed were: Consortium Inconfidentes,
Consortium Tiradentes, Consortium Sagarana, Consortium Pampulha, Consortium Libertas,
Consortium Peruaçu, Consortium Canastra, Consortium Velho Chico, Consortium Tropeiros,
Consortium Chico Rei, Consortium Fenícia, Consortium Daltez, Consortium Órigo Energia
Estrada Real, Consortium Órigo Energia Igarassu I, Consortium Órigo Energia Igarassu II,
Consortium Órigo Energia Serra do Cipó, and Cooperative Origo Geração Distribuída (COGD).
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1. Operations (Continued)

On June 22, 2020, the totality of the units of interest of the subsidiary Tiradentes Geração de
Energia Solar Ltda. (5 MWac) were sold to Fundo de Investimento em Participações em
Infraestrutura Solar I, administered by Casaforte Investimentos S/A (Note 13).

On August 27, 2020, the companies Brasília de Minas Campo Lindo Geração de Energia Solar
Ltda., Janaúba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar Ltda., and Pampulha Geração de Energia
Solar Ltda. were merged into the subsidiary Francisco Sá II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda.,
which established three branches in the cities of Francisco de Sá-MG, Janaúba-MG and Brasília
de Minas-MG on September 21, 2020 (Note 13).

Impacts of COVID-19 (Coronavirus) on the Company’s business

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the Covid-19 outbreak to be a
global pandemic. The outbreak triggered significant decisions by governments and private sector
entities, which, added to the potential impact of the outbreak, increased the degree of uncertainty
for economic agents and led to significant impacts on the financial statements. The major world
economies and economic blocs implemented expressive economic incentive packages to
overcome the potential economic recession caused by these measures to mitigate the spread of
COVID -19.

In Brazil, the Federal Executive and Legislative branches have published various rulings to
prevent and contain the pandemic, as well as to mitigate the respective impacts on the economy,
with emphasis on Legislative Decree No. 6, published on March 20, 2020, which declares the
state of public calamity. State and local governments have also published a number of rulings
seeking to restrict the free movement of people and commercial and service activities, in addition
to enabling emergency investments in the health area. During the crisis, management constantly
evaluated the impact of the outbreak on the operations and financial position of the Company with
a view to implementing appropriate measures to mitigate the impacts on operations.

The Company implemented the following measures in 2020:

 Implementation of a Crisis Management committee;

 Restrictions regarding the movement and crowding of people on its premises, as a way to
prevent the spread of the virus;

 Suspension of travel, on-site training and participation in events for all employees;

 Temporary adoption of the home office regime during the pandemic for all employees;

 Intensification in internal communications of preventive measures.

 Optimization of the use of technology to ensure virtual service to its customers, impacting as
little as possible its administrative and operational activities.
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1. Operations (Continued)

Impacts of COVID-19 (Coronavirus) on the Company’s business (Continued)

To reduce financial impacts, management also adopted the following measures:

 Renegotiation of terms of certain payables with banks, suppliers and other accounts payable;

 Postponement of PIS/COFINS payments referring to the months of March and April 2020, as
per Administrative Ruling No. 139 of April 2020;

 Postponement of FGTS payments referring to the months of March through May 2020, as per
Provisional Executive Order MP No. 927/202;

 Reduced working hours with proportional salary reduction of 25% for part of employees,
between April and July 2020, as per MP No. 936/2020;

 Use of tax deferrals and other proposals for tax optimization;

 Change in the sales strategy, with intensification and acceleration of sales to individual
customers for solar farms operations;

 Intensification of renegotiation of customer debts and flexibility of payment terms to contain the
increase in customer turnover in the base.

As a result of the measures above, management considers to have effectively followed the
guidelines of the competent agencies in relation to good practices in the work environment for the
prevention of COVID-19, rapidly adapting to the new reality of remote work and keeping revenues
and cash as planned for 2020.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

The individual financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting practices
adopted in Brazil, including the pronouncements issued by Brazil´s Financial Accounting
Standards Board (CPC).

Management represents that all significant information included in the financial statements, and
only such information, is evidenced and corresponds to the information used for management of
the Company’s activities.

The financial statements, including the explanatory notes, are the responsibility of the Company
management, which authorized their completion on April 14, 2021.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.1. First-time adoption of Law No. 11638/07 and Provisional Executive Order No. 449/08

In accordance with the provisions of the Brazilian Securities and Exchange Commission
(CVM) Rule No. 565, of December 17, 2008, which approved accounting pronouncement
CPC 13 - First-time adoption of Law No. 11638/07 and Provisional Executive Order No.
449/08, the Company established the transition date for adoption of the new accounting
practices on January 1, 2020. The transition date is defined as the starting point for adoption
of the changes in accounting practices adopted in Brazil, and represents the base date for
preparation of the Company’s opening statement of financial position adjusted by these new
accounting provisions.

CPC 13 released the companies from applying the provisions of CVM Rule No. 506/06 -
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors upon first-time adoption
of Law No. 11638/07 and MP No. 449/08. This resolution requires that, in addition to
detailing the effects of adopting the new accounting practice in the retained
earnings/accumulated losses account, the company must present the opening statement of
financial position for the account or group of accounts referring to the oldest period for
comparison purposes, as well as the other comparative amounts presented, as if the new
accounting practice had always been in use.

The Company exercised the option provided for in this CPC, reflecting the adjustments
resulting from the change in accounting practice against the retained earnings account on
January 1, 2020. The balances for the year ended December 31, 2019 presented for
comparison purposes were prepared in accordance with accounting practices adopted in
Brazil applicable to small and medium-sized companies (NBC TG 1000 (R1)) and, as
permitted by Accounting Pronouncement CPC 13 - First-Time Adoption of Law No.
11638/07 and Provisional Executive Order No. 449/08, are not being restated with the
adjustments for purposes of comparison between the years.

These changes in accounting practices that had an effect on the preparation or presentation
of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and on the opening
statement of financial position as of January 1, 2020 were measured and recorded by the
Company based on the accounting pronouncements issued and in force on this date.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.1. First-time adoption of Law No. 11638/07 and Provisional Executive Order No. 449/08
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the effects of first-time adoption of Law No. 11638/07 and Provisional
Executive Order No. 449/08

In compliance with the disclosure requirements for first-time adoption of the new accounting
practices, the table below presents for this year and the previous year for comparison
purposes, a brief description and the amounts corresponding to the impacts on equity and
P&L, individual and consolidated, referring to the changes introduced by Law No. 11638 / 07
and MP No. 449/08. The impacts on P&L of the parent company and consolidated are
shown only with reference to 2020, in view of the option made by the Company in relation to
the transition date:

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Equity with full application of Law No. 11638/07 and
MP No. 449/08 76,196 114,938 76,196 114,938

CPC 06(R2) - Leases (Note 15) (32) (32) (337) (337)
CPC 04 - Intangible assets - Amortization - Set up -

Solar Farm (Note 16) - - 3,602 3,602
CPC 10(R1) - Share-based payment (Note 21) 5,284 405 5,284 405

Equity before full application of Law No. 11638/07 and
MP No. 449/08 81,448 115,311 84,745 118,608

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Net loss with full application of Law No. 11638/07
and MP No. 449/08 (38,524) (24,610) (38,524) (24,610)

CPC 06(R2) - Leases (Note 15) (32) (32) (337) (337)
CPC 04 - Intangible assets - Amortization - Set up -

Solar Farm (Note 16) - - 3,602 3,602
CPC 10(R1) - Share-based payment (Note 21) 5,284 405 5,284 405

Net loss before changes introduced by Law No.
11638/07 and MP No. 449/08 (33,272) (24,237) (29,975) (20,940)

2.2. Measurement basis

The individual and consolidated financial statements were prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless otherwise indicated.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.3. Going concern considerations

Based on the facts and circumstances existing until the date when these financial
statements were authorized, management assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern and is convinced that the Company is able to generate funds in order to
continue as a going concern in the future. Additionally, management is not aware of any
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements were prepared using the going
concern basis of accounting.

This statement is based on management’s expectation relating to the future of the
Company, which is consistent with its business plan. Throughout the year, the Company
routinely prepares business plans, comprising annual or multi-annual budgets, which
contain detailed information on capital investment plans, strategic plans and Company
facilities maintenance programs. These plans are monitored over the year by Company
Board of Directors and may be changed.

2.4. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Brazilian reais, which is the Company’s
presentation currency. All financial information was presented in thousands of reais, unless
otherwise stated in an explanatory note.

2.5. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions, when they occur, are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Exchange gains or losses from
translation of foreign currencies are recognized in P&L.

2.6. Basis of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries and associates

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the parent
company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020. Control is obtained when the
Company holds, directly or indirectly, the majority of voting rights, or is exposed or entitled
to variable return based on its involvement with the investee and can affect these returns
through the power used in the investee.

The following accounting practices are applied for preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.6. Basis of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Company has
control. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed or entitled to variable
returns deriving from its involvement in the entity and can interfere in these returns due
to the power it exercises thereover. The subsidiaries are fully consolidated as from the
date when the control is transferred to the Company. The consolidation is discontinued
on the date such control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured by the equity pickup method from the date
control is acquired. Under this method, financial interests held in the subsidiaries are
recognized in the financial statements at acquisition cost, and are adjusted periodically
to the amount corresponding to the Company's share in net income, matched against
an operating income account, with the exception of exchange differences of these
companies, which are recorded in a specific equity account named Equity adjustments.
These effects are recognized as revenues and expenses upon disposal or write-off of
the investment.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment of the transferred asset. The accounting practices of the
subsidiary are adjusted when necessary to ensure consistency with the practices
adopted by the Company.

b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence, but not
control, generally through a 20% to 50% ownership interest in the voting rights.
Investments in associates are recorded using the equity method and are initially
recognized at cost.

The Company's share in P&L of its associates is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss, while its share in changes in reserves is accounted for in its equity.

c) Individual financial statements

In the individual financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are recorded under
the equity method. The same adjustments are made to both individual and consolidated
financial statements so as to reach the same P&L and equity attributable to the
Company’s shareholders.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.6. Basis of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

d) Transactions and equity interest of noncontrolling shareholders/members

The Company treats transactions with noncontrolling interests, when applicable, as
transactions with owners of assets of its subsidiaries. For acquisition of noncontrolling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the acquired portion of the
book value of the subsidiary's net assets is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposal to noncontrolling shareholders are also recorded directly in equity.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared under the following criteria:

 Elimination of intercompany balances;

 Elimination of investments and equity pickup in the consolidated companies against
respective equity of the investee;

 Elimination of revenues and expenses deriving from intercompany transactions;

 Elimination of profit from inventories and property, plant and equipment disposed of,
where applicable, upon intercompany sales;

 Calculation of noncontrolling interests in consolidated equity and profit or loss.

The consortia in which EBES Administradora acts as leader are not included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Cooperativa Origo Geração Distribuída (COGD) is also not consolidated in the financial
statements being presented.



EBES Sistema de Energia S.A.

Notes to individual and consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais - R$, unless otherwise stated)

22

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.6. Basis of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries and associates (Continued)

d) Transactions and equity interest of noncontrolling shareholders/members (Continued)

Information on Company subsidiaries at year end is as follows:

Name of subsidiary Core activity Interest held - %
2020 2019

Finco Assessoria Financeira Ltda. (Finco) Provision of preventive and corrective maintenance services
relating to operations of solar power generation equipment 100 100

EBES Administradora de Consórcios Ltda. (EBES ADM) Consortium management services 100 100
João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. (João Pinheiro) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 100 100
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Tiradentes) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit - 100
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Sagarana) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 100 100
Pampulha Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Pampulha) (i) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit - 100
Manga Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Manga I) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 100 100
Francisco SA II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Francisco SA

II)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

100 100
Janauba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Janauba

Floresta) (i)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

- 100
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Janauba II) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 100 100
São Francisco III Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (São

Francisco III)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Mato Verde Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (Mato Verde) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (São

Francisco Angicos)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Brasília de Minas Campo Lindo Geração de Energia Solar

Ltda. (Brasília de Minas) (i)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

- 99.90
Várzea da Palma Curumatai Geração de Energia Solar Ltda.

(Várzea de Palma)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Barreiro Geração de Energia Solar 21 Ltda. (Barreiro) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Buriti Geração de Energia Solar 25 Ltda. (Buriti) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Capim Branco Geração de Energia Solar 15 Ltda. (Capim

Branco)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Irai de Minas Geração de Energia Solar 19 Ltda. (Iraí de

Minas)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Lagoa Grande Geração de Energia Solar 22 Ltda. (Lagoa

Grande)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Lambari Geração de Energia Solar 20 Ltda. (Lambari) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Santa Rosa Geração de Energia Solar 14 Ltda. (Santa Rosa) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
São Bento Geração de Energia Solar 17 Ltda. (São Bento) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Três Reis Geração de Energia Solar 18 Ltda. (Três Reis) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Marimbondo Geração de Energia Solar 23 Ltda. (Marimbondo) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Cruzeiro Geração de Energia Solar 24 Ltda. (Cruzeiro) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Campestre Geração de Energia Solar 16 Ltda. (Campestre) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Six Energy Desenvolvimento de Negócios Ltda. (Six Energy) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Papagaio Geração de Energia 26 Ltda. (Papagaio) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Frutal Geração de Energia 27 Ltda. (Frutal) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Pimenta Geração de Energia 28 Ltda. (Pimenta) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
São Gotardo Geração de Energia 32 Ltda. (São Gotardo) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Piumhi Geração de Energia 33 Ltda. (Piumhi) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Melgaço Geração de Energia 31 Ltda. (Melgaço) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Terra Vista II Geração de Energia 30 Ltda. (Terra Vista II) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Santa Martha Geração de Energia 29 Ltda. (Santa Martha) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Ponte Alta Geração de Energia 34 Ltda. (Ponte Alta) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Poutrinha Geração de Energia 37 Ltda. (Poutrinha) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Três Amores Geração de Energia 36 Ltda. (Três Amores) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Jacauna Geração de Energia 35 Ltda. (Jacauna) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Vertentes Geração de Energia 39 Ltda. (Vertentes) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Petrolina Geração de Energia 38 Ltda. (Petrolina) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Parnamirim Geração de Energia 40 Ltda. (Parnamirim) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Princesa Dos Canaviais Geração De Energia 41 Ltda.

(Princesa dos Canaviais)
Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit

99.90 99.90
Campos Novos Geração De Energia 42 Ltda. (Campos novos) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90
Bananal Geração De Energia Solar 46 Ltda. (Bananal) Lease of photovoltaic solar power generation unit 99.90 99.90

(i) Merged subsidiaries - Note 13
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies and practices are described in the corresponding explanatory
note, except those presented below, which refer to more than one note. Accounting policies
and practices were consistently applied for the years presented and in the Company’s
individual and consolidated financial statements.

2.7.1. Financial instruments

Financial instruments are only recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. The instruments are initially
recognized at fair value plus costs directly attributable to their acquisition or issue,
where applicable. They are subsequently measured at each statement of financial
position date according to rules established for each type of financial asset or liability
classification.

Financial assets: Upon initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured
at: (i) amortized cost; (ii) fair value through other comprehensive income; or (iii) fair
value through profit or loss. Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not classified as measured at fair value recognized in
P&L.

Financial assets at fair value recognized in the income statement are initially
recognized at fair value, and the transaction costs are charged to P&L in the period
in which they occur.

The fair value of publicly traded investments is based on the current purchase
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Company establishes fair
value using valuation techniques. These techniques include the use of recent
transactions contracted with third parties, reference to other instruments that are
substantially similar, analysis of discounted cash flows and option pricing models,
privileging market information and minimizing the use of information generated by
management.

A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset, or a part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized especially when: (i) the rights to receive
cash flows from the asset expire; and (ii) the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.1. Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities: A financial liability is classified as measured at fair value through
profit or loss if it is defined as held for trading or designated as such at the time of its
initial recognition. Transaction costs are recognized in P&L as incurred. These
financial liabilities are measured at fair value and any changes in fair value, including
gains with interest and dividends, are recognized in P&L for the year.

The financial liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries, which are initially
recognized at fair value, include trade accounts payable and other accounts
payable, debentures, loans and financing.

A financial liability is written off when the obligation is discharged, or canceled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offset of financial instruments: Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial assets or liabilities: The Company recognizes a derivative
financial asset or a financial liability only when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Upon initial recognition of derivative financial assets or
financial liabilities, the Company measures these items at fair value, which is usually
transaction price.

At the end of each reference period, the Company measures all derivative financial
instruments at fair value and records changes in fair value in profit or loss.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.2. Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss is valued at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Impairment of an asset occurs if there is objective evidence indicating that a loss
event occurred after its initial recognition and such loss event had a negative effect
on projected future cash flows that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence of impairment of financial assets may include late payment by
the debtor, the restructuring of the amount due to the Company under conditions
that the Company would not consider in other transactions, indication that the debtor
or issuer will file for bankruptcy, or the disappearance of an active market for a
security.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both the
individual and the collective levels. All receivables are assessed for specific
impairment. All receivables identified as not having suffered impairment individually
are then assessed collectively for any loss of value that may have occurred, but has
not yet been identified. Receivables that are not individually significant are assessed
collectively for impairment by grouping these notes with similar risk characteristics.

A reduction in the recoverable amount in relation to a financial asset measured at
amortized cost is calculated as the difference between the book value and the
present value of estimated future cash flows. Losses are recognized in P&L and
reflected in a provision account against receivables. When a subsequent event
indicates reversal of the impairment, the decrease in the loss of value is reversed
and recorded in P&L.

2.7.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, bank deposits in cash, and
short-term investments. Short-term investments are stated at cost, plus income
earned until the statement of financial position closing date, and have immediate
liquidity. For a short-term investment to be classified as cash equivalent, it must be
readily convertible into a known cash amount and be subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.3. Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Therefore, an investment usually qualifies as a cash equivalent only when it has an
original short-term maturity of three months or less from the investment date. The
fair value of short-term investments is calculated, where applicable, taking into
consideration the market quotations or information that makes this calculation
possible.

2.7.4. Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are initially measured at the nominal value of the notes,
adjusted to present value, when applicable. Allowance for doubtful accounts, when
necessary, is recorded based on an analysis of accounts receivable and in an
amount considered sufficient by management to cover probable losses on their
realization.

2.7.5. Impairment of nonfinancial assets

Management annually tests the net book value of assets to determine whether there
are any events or changes in economic, operating, or technological circumstances
that could indicate deterioration or impairment. When such evidence is identified and
the net book value exceeds the recoverable amount, a provision for impairment is
set up adjusting the net book value to the recoverable amount.

Based on currently available information, management is unaware of asset
impairment or changes in business circumstances that could justify the recognition
of a loss due to the non-recovery of these assets.

2.7.6. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Inventory cost was changed in January 2019, from recognition under the First In,
First Out (FIFO) method to recognition under the weighted moving average method,
whereby cost is adjusted by purchases of units for different prices. Inventory costs
include expenses incurred in the acquisition of inventory items, production and
transformation costs, and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.



EBES Sistema de Energia S.A.

Notes to individual and consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais - R$, unless otherwise stated)

27

2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment items are measured at historical acquisition or build-
up cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, when
necessary. Professional fees and, in the case of qualifying assets, costs of
capitalized loans are recorded as part of costs of property, plant and equipment in
progress. These items are classified into appropriate property, plant and equipment
categories, when completed and ready for their intended use. Depreciation of these
assets begins when they are ready for their intended use on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment items.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method considering their costs and residual values during the estimated useful
life, as follows:

Useful life
(years)

Machinery and equipment 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Tools 10
IT equipment 5
Leasehold improvements 5
Vehicles 5
Communication equipment 5
Facilities 10
Solar equipment 25

The residual values and useful lives of the assets were reviewed and adjusted, and
adequately represent the position at the year end.

The book value of an asset is immediately written down to the recoverable amount
when the book value is higher than the estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7.5).
Gains and losses from disposals are calculated by comparing the results with the
book value, and are recognized as Other operating income (expenses), net, in P&L.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.8. Intangible assets

With enactment of Law No. 11638/07, the group of intangible assets is now formed
by accounts that were in other groups of Permanent Assets, and new transactions,
which represent intangible assets, such as brands, patents, concession rights ,
exploration rights, franchise rights, copyrights, expenses with new product
development, customer portfolio formation, goodwill paid for expected future
profitability.

The Company also records expenses with formation of the customer portfolio.
Intangible assets are measured at historical acquisition cost, less accumulated
amortization and impairment, when necessary. The professional fees of the sales,
advertising and promotion team, among other expenses directly related to the
formation of the customer portfolio, are recorded as intangible asset costs. These
expenses are classified in intangible assets as Set up - Solar Farm, when completed
and ready for the intended use.

Amortization of these assets begins when they are ready for their intended use on the
same basis as other fixed assets. The amortization rate of intangible assets was
defined according to the historical base of the turnover of the customer portfolio. This
estimate is reviewed annually by management.

2.7.9. Trade accounts payable

Trade accounts payable are obligations payable to suppliers for goods or services
acquired in the ordinary course of business. They are initially recognized at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. In practice, these obligations are usually recognized at the amount of the
corresponding invoice.

2.7.10. Loans and financing

Loans and financing are initially recognized at the transaction value (that is, the
amount received from the bank, including transaction costs) and subsequently
stated at amortized cost.

Costs of loans directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take substantial time to be ready for the
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of such assets through the date on which
they are ready for the intended use or sale.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.10. Loans and financing (Continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognized in P&L for the year as finance costs.

Interest expenses are recorded based on the effective interest rate method over the
loan or financing term, so that the book balance corresponds to the amount due on
the maturity date.

Loans and financing maturing until the end of the following year are classified in
current liabilities, and those with longer terms in noncurrent liabilities.

2.7.11. Other current and noncurrent assets and liabilities

An asset is recognized in the statement of financial position when its future
economic benefits are likely to flow to the Company, and its cost or value can be
reliably measured. Liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position
when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising from past events,
the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of economic benefits.

They are stated at their known or determinable amounts, plus, when applicable, the
corresponding earnings, charges and monetary restatements incurred up to the
statement of financial position date and, in the case of assets, adjusted by provision
for losses when necessary.

2.7.12. Present value adjustment of assets and liabilities

Noncurrent monetary assets and liabilities and current, when the effect is considered
material in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole, are adjusted to
present value. Present value adjustment is calculated considering contractual cash
flows and the explicit, and sometimes implicit, interest rates of the corresponding
assets and liabilities. Accordingly, interest embedded in revenues, expenses and
costs associated with these assets and liabilities are discounted with a view to
recognizing them on an accrual basis in the year. This interest is subsequently
allocated to finance income and costs in the statement of profit or loss using the
effective interest rate method in relation to contractual cash flows. Implicit interest
rates, when applied, are determined based on reasonably substantiated
assumptions and are considered accounting estimates.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.13. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and its subsidiaries, and the
specific criteria have been met for each one of the Company’s activities, as
described below.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the agreement that are
distinct performance obligations, to which a portion of the transaction price needs to
be allocated (for example, guarantees, among others). When determining the
transaction price for the sale of products and tooling, the Company considers the
effects of the variable consideration, the existence of significant financing
components, the nonmonetary consideration, and the consideration due to the
customer (if any).

Sales of products

The Company recognizes revenue from products sold when all of the following
conditions are met:

 The Company has transferred to the buyer the most significant risks and rewards
inherent in ownership of the products;

 The Company does not maintain continued involvement in the management of
products sold to a degree normally associated with ownership, nor does it have
effective control over such products; the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

 Economic benefits associated with the transaction are likely to flow to the
Company;

 Costs incurred or to be incurred relating to the transaction may be reliably
measured.

Services provided

When the revenue from a transaction involving provision of services can be reliably
estimated, the Company recognizes revenue associated with this transaction by
reference to the stage of execution of the transaction at the year end (also referred
to as percentage of completion method). The revenue from the transaction can be
reliably estimated when all of the following conditions are met:
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.13. Revenue recognition (Continued)

Services provided (Continued)

 The revenue amount can be reliably measured;

 Economic benefits associated with the transaction are likely to flow to the
Company;

 The stage of completion of the transaction at end of the reference period can be
reliably measured;

 Costs incurred with the transaction or costs to complete the transaction can be
reliably measured.

When revenue from the transaction involving provision of services cannot be reliably
estimated, the Company recognizes revenue only to the extent that the expenses
recorded can be recovered.

2.7.14. Leases

The amount was calculated considering the agreement’s full term.

Recognition assumptions

The Company adopted the exemption for recognition of short-term leases, and the
lease payments associated with these agreements are recognized as an expense
for the year over the lease term.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities considering the
following assumptions:

(i) Inclusion of agreements in the base at the beginning of the term, and the
amount of the right-of-use asset is defined at this time;

(ii) Agreements with terms of more than 12 months fall within the scope of the
standard. The Company does not consider aspects of renewal in its
methodology, given that the assets involved in its operations are not
indispensable for performance of its business, and may be replaced at the end
of the agreement by new assets acquired or by other transactions other than
those agreed upon;
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.14. Leases (Continued)

Recognition assumptions (Continued)

(iii) Agreements involving the use immaterial or low-value assets are not
considered;

(iv) Only transactions involving specific assets defined in the agreement or for
exclusive use over the period of the agreement are considered;

(v) The methodology used to calculate the net present value of the agreements
corresponds to the cash flow of the considerations assumed discounted at the
discount rate defined for the class of the asset;

(vi) The discount rate used is 7.52% to 11.34% p.a., changing according to the
maturity of each lease, calculated by adding the credit spread on the issue of
debentures to the last DI x fixed curve made available in 2020, for a period of 25
years;

(vii) vii) The term of each lease agreement adjusted for the duration of the respective
payment flow;

(viii) Guarantee - estimate of the impact of the guarantee, synthetically reducing the
yield observed in the Company's funding curves; and

(ix) Similar economic environment - credit risk of the Company, country risk,
currency of the agreement and date of the beginning of the funding.

The Company's leases in effect as of December 31, 2020 are not subject to
covenants that impose the attainment of financial ratios nor do they contain variable
payment clauses that must be considered or residual value guarantee clauses and
purchase options at the end of the lease terms.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method.
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in index or rate, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase option, extension or termination, or if there is a fixed revised
lease payment in essence.

Lease obligations with substantial transfer of rewards, risks and control of assets are
recognized in liabilities as finance leases.
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2. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (Continued)

2.7. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7.14. Leases (Continued)

Recognition assumptions (Continued)

The liability is initially recognized at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The discount rate used is the
interest rate implicit in the agreements.

Financial charges are allocated during the lease term, producing a constant periodic
interest rate on the remaining liabilities balance.

Payments made under operating leases were recognized in P&L on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.7.15. New or amended pronouncements with first-time adoption in 2020

The Company adopted the pronouncements and amendments in force for the first
time as of January 1, 2020, as detailed in Note 2.1. The Company decided against
the early adoption of any other standard, interpretation or amendment issued that is
not already in force.

2.7.16. Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet in effect until
the date of issue of the Company’s financial statements are described below. The
Company intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interpretations, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts: In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance
contracts (a standard not yet issued by the CPC in Brazil, to be coded as CPC 50 -
Insurance contracts, replacing CPC 11 - Insurance contracts), a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 (CPC 50) will replace IFRS 4
Insurance contracts (CPC 11) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types
of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.
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3. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires that management make judgments and
estimates and adopt assumptions that affect application of accounting policies and the amounts
disclosed referring to assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions presented below are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The effects
of revised accounting estimates are recognized in the year or period when the estimates are
revised, if such revision affects only that year or period, or also later years or periods, if the
revision affects future years.

In order to provide an understanding of how the Company and its subsidiaries make judgments
about future events, including variables and assumptions used in accounting estimates, our
comments on certain matters are as follows:

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company and its subsidiaries carry depreciation of property, plant and equipment items
based on their estimated useful lives, which are based on practices and experience, and
reflect the economic lives of these assets. However, actual useful lives may vary depending
on various factors. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment also affect cost recovery
tests.

b) Impairment of assets

At year end, the Company and its subsidiaries review their property, plant and equipment
balance, assessing the existence of any indications that these assets are impaired (value in
use). If there is such indication, management performs a detailed analysis of the recoverable
amount of each asset by calculating the individual future cash flow discounted to present
value, and adjusts the balance of the respective asset, if required.

c) Provision for inventory realization and obsolescence

Provision for inventory realization is set up based on analysis of sales prices adopted, net of
tax effects and fixed expenses incurred to sell the assets. Provision for obsolescence is set
up based on an item-by-item analysis of the age of the inventory items and likelihood of their
future use.

d) Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts was set up at an amount considered sufficient by
management of the Company and its subsidiaries to cover any losses on collection of
receivables.
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3. Use of estimates and judgments (Continued)

e) Provision for civil, tax and labor contingencies

Provisions are recorded for all legal proceedings representing probable losses and are
estimated with a certain degree of reliability. Assessment of the likelihood of loss includes an
evaluation of available evidence, the hierarchy of laws, available case law, recent court
decisions and their relevance in the legal system, as well as the opinion of outside legal
advisors.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Bank accounts 79 818 775 6,084
Short-term investments 18,513 310 25,805 14,108

18,592 1,128 26,580 20,192

Cash and cash equivalents are held in order to meet short-term cash commitments.

Investments are mostly of daily liquidity held in first-tier financial institutions, in fixed income fund
(DI) with repurchase agreements backed by third parties, indexed to the Interbank Deposit
Certificate (CDI), remunerated at rates up to 105% of the CDI, contracted under usual market
conditions and rates, and are available for use in the Company's operations. These investments
are held so as to meet short-term commitments, are readily convertible into a known cash amount
and subject to a low risk of change in value.

5. Short-term investments and restricted cash

The Company has a restricted cash balance in subsidiaries, as assignment in trust arising from
contracted loans and debentures issued, as shown in Notes 18 and 19.

Current

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A. 643 - 643 -
João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. - - 187 -

643 - 830 -
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5. Short-term investments and restricted cash (Continued)

Noncurrent

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Ebes Sistemas de Energia S.A. 1,586 1,962 1,586 1,963
João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. - - 1,493 581
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - - - 435
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - - 1,078 1,085
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - - - 6,135
Manga Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - - - 5,858
Francisco de Sa II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - - 4,250 -

1,586 1,962 8,407 16,057

6. Trade accounts receivable

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Trade notes receivable 2,150 130 16,105 5,887
2,150 130 16,105 5,887

Company management records allowance for doubtful accounts for a portion of the amounts
overdue for over 30 days for which there are indications of nonrealization and that are not
renegotiated. Management also assessed the existence of expected losses in accordance with
CPC 48 and did not identify any additional amount to be provisioned.

7. Financial instruments

The derivative instruments contracted by the Company are intended to hedge its operations
against the risks of fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates, and are not used for
speculative purposes.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company had the following instrument:

Non-deliverable forward (NDF), with the objective of hedging against risks of fluctuations in
exchange rates. The fair value is determined by the pricing model of observable markets.

In order to hedge cash flows related to the acquisition of machinery and equipment denominated
in US dollars, the Company contracted derivative financial instruments in the form of NDFs, not
designated for hedge accounting, as follows:
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7. Financial instruments (Continued)

Individual and Consolidated

Receivables Payables

Type Notional value Maturity
Balance at
12/31/2020

Balance at
12/31/2020 Balance

NDF(¹) USD10,000 Mar/2021 831 - 831
831 - 831

(¹) NDF in the amount of US$10,000, at the weighted average price of R$5,1047, equivalent to R$51,000.

8. Taxes recoverable
Individual Consolidated

2020 2019 2020 2019

Withholding Income Tax (IRRF) 401 415 496 422
Corporate Income Tax (IRPJ) 215 375 215 375
Social Contribution Tax on Net Profit (CSLL) 9 9 9 9
Contribution Tax on Gross Revenue for Social Integration

Program (PIS) 108 23 117 24
Contribution Tax on Gross Revenue for Social Security

Financing (COFINS) 338 611 338 611
Service tax (ISS) 58 36 58 49
Social Security Tax (INSS) 26 - 29 3

1,155 1,469 1,262 1,493

The Company periodically analyzes the progress of accumulated tax credits, with a view to using
these credits. Management understands that these credits will be recovered in the normal course
of business in the coming years.

9. Other assets

a) Current

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Prepaid expenses
EBES Sistemas de Energia S.A. 621 323 622 323
João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. - - 4 30
EBES Administradora de Consórcios Ltda - - 2 -
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - - 161
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - 573 372
Janauba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - - 8
Francisco Sá II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - 361 1,707
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - 162 -
Manga Geração de Energia Solar Ltda - - 356 54
Lambari Geracao de Energia Solar 20 Ltda. - - 18 -
Sao Bento Geracao de Energia Solar 17 Ltda. - - 3 -

621 323 2,101 2,655
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9. Other assets (Continued)

b) Noncurrent

Individual and Consolidated
2020 2019

Expenses to be reimbursed - solar farm connections 7,118 -
7,118 -

The amounts in current assets refer to prepaid insurance expenses, extended guarantees,
sureties and software licenses that are amortized according to the respective effective terms.

The amounts in noncurrent assets refer to expenses for connection of own farms or farms
owned by third parties.

The Company incurs costs in the construction and adequacy of connections (network and
substations) and, subsequently, these amounts are reimbursed by the energy distributor.

Changes in connection expenses in 2020 are as follows:

2019 Transfers (i) Reimbursements 2020

Solar Farm connections - 10,636 (3,518) 7,118

(i) Balances transferred from PPE (Note 14).

10. Assets from discontinued operations

Between 2019 and 2020, the Rooftop and Kit business lines were discontinued, and the Company
now focuses on the Solar Farm business, as explained in Note 1.

Assets and liabilities of discontinued operations are detailed below:

a) Assets of the discontinued operations

Individual and Consolidated
2020 2019

Trade accounts receivable 2,805 4,251
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,194) (2,193)
Inventories - 3,272
Taxes recoverable 8,060 10,819
Provision for losses - ICMS (890) (918)
Property, plant and equipment - 204

7,782 15,435
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10. Assets from discontinued operations (Continued)

b) Liabilities from discontinued operations

No liabilities from discontinued operations were identified.

c) P&L from discontinued operations

Below is the analysis of P&L from discontinued operations, comprising P&L from Rooftop and
Kit, which were discontinued at December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019

Net operating revenue 5,468 31,206
Cost of products sold and services rendered (5,750) (29,866)
Gross profit (loss) (282) 1,340

Other operating income (expenses)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (1,695) (4,268)
Other operating expenses, net (40) (382)

(1,735) (4,650)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations (2,017) (3,310)

d) Cash flows from discontinued operations

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities 7,654 (15,435)
7,654 (15,435)

11. Related parties

a) Balances

Noncurrent balances receivable refer to:

 Intercompany loans bearing market interest entered into with companies and shareholders
in common, formalized by and between the parties, with maturity expected within twenty
years and possibility of early settlement. Tax on financial transactions (IOF) and Income tax
(IR) are levied on this amount.

 Sales of equipment for construction of the solar farms and transactions for collection of Set
up - Solar Farm costs.
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11. Related parties (Continued)

a) Balances (Continued)

 Transfers of amounts between Ebes Administradora de Consórcios Ltda. and the consortia,
not subject to interest and taxes (IOF and IR) for not being considered intercompany loans.

As of December 31, 2020, the balances of transactions with related parties classified as
receivables from related companies in noncurrent assets are as follows:

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. 912 - - -
EBES Administração de Consórcio Ltda. 113 576 - -
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 1,976 - -
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. 3,773 3,346 - -
Janaúba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 4
Francisco SA II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. 17,940 - - -
Manga I Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. 2,922 10,092 - -
Pampulha Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 7,483 - -
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. 2,789 2,047 - -
São Francisco III Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 10 - -
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. 242 244 - -
Brasília de Minas Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 372 - -
Várzea da Palma Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. - 10 - -
Consortium Inconfidentes - - 1 1
Consortium Tiradentes - - 165
Consortium Pampulha - - - 117
Consortium Sagarana - - 701 680
Consortium Libertas - - 160 10
Consortium Tropeiros - - 162 -
Consortium Velho Chico - - 32 -
Consortium Canastra - - 108 -
Consortium Chico Rei - - 61 -
Consortium Órigo Energia Serra do Cipó - - 1 -
Cooperative Órigo Energia - - 33 -

28,691 26,160 1,259 973

b) Transactions

Transactions in 2020 between the Company, its subsidiaries and the consortia are as follows:
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11. Related parties (Continued)

b) Transactions (Continued)

Intercompany loans and transfers with consortia

Individual Consolidated
2020 2020

Loans Interest Loans Interest

João Pinheiro Solar Ltda 875 37 - -
Francisco SA II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 2,019 169 - -
Consortium Inconfidentes - - 1 -
Consortium Sagarana - - 701 -
Consortium Libertas - - 160 -
Consortium Tropeiros - - 162 -
Consortium Velho Chico - - 32 -
Consortium Canastra - - 108 -
Consortium Chico Rei - - 61 -
Consortium Órigo Energia Serra do Cipó - - 1 -
Cooperative Órigo Energia - - 32 1

2,894 206 1,258 1

Sales transactions

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

EBES ADM 113 - - -
Sagarana 3,773 2 - -
Janauba Floresta - 4 - -
Francisco Sa II 15,753 - - -
Manga I 2,922 10,087 - -
Pampulha - - - -
Janauba II 2,789 4 - -
São Francisco Angicos 241 224 - -

25,591 10,321 - -

c) Management compensation

Management compensation for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounts to R$5,184
(R$4,669 at December 31, 2019) and includes short-term benefits such as salaries, related
charges and other.



EBES Sistema de Energia S.A.

Notes to individual and consolidated financial statements (Continued)
December 31, 2020 and 2019
(In thousands of reais - R$, unless otherwise stated)

42

12. Provision for contingencies and judicial deposits

Individual and Consolidated
2020 2019

Judicial deposits 108 155
Provision for contingencies - (3)

108 152

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to lawsuits in the ordinary course of business that
are annually assessed by management, supported by its legal advisors, and, based on this
assessment, provisions are set up when necessary considering the best estimate at the time of
the event.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries have no lawsuits assessed as
probable loss (R$3 in 2019)

Labor claims assessed as possible loss totaled R$449 in 2020 (R$556 in 2019).

Civil suits assessed as possible loss totaled R$32 in 2020 (R$0 in 2019).

In May 2018, the Company was served a tax delinquency notice issued by the state of Pará
Finance Office (SEFA-PA) relating to alleged lack of payment of ICMS rate differential on its
operations, amounting to approximately R$3,553, estimated as possible loss.

In 2019, the Company was served a tax delinquency notice by the city of Porto de Moz/PA,
relating to alleged lack of payment of Service tax (ISSQN) on its operations, amounting to
approximately R$R$345, estimated as possible loss.

Judicial deposits as of December 31, 2020 recorded by the Company and its subsidiaries are
shown below:

Individual and Consolidated Labor

Balances in 2019 3
Additions -
Payments (3)
Balances in 2020 -
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13. Investments

a) Balances

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Finco Assessoria Financeira 250 288 - -
João Pinheiro Solar 5,258 5,743 - -
Ebes Adm de Consórcios 4,818 1,012 - -
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar - 14,897 - -
São Francisco III Geração de Energia Solar 6 4 - -
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar 11,159 9,530 - -
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar 9,496 749 - -
Manga Geração de Energia Solar 10,743 7,814 - -
Pampulha Geração de Energia Solar - 697 - -
Francisco SA II Geração de Energia 21,513 16,867 - -
Janauba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar - 582 - -
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Solar 11 (20) - -
Brasilia de Minas Geração de Energia Solar - 856 - -
Varzea de Palmas Geração de Energia Solar 4 (1) - -
Six Energy 831 829 - -
Barreiro Geração de Energia Solar 3 (2) - -
Buriti Geração de Energia Solar 159 (1) - -
Irai de Minas Geração de Energia Solar 167 (1) - -
Lagoa Grande Geração de Energia Solar 13 (1) - -
Lambari Geração de Energia Solar (2) (1) - -
Santa Rosa Geração de Energia Solar 61 (1) - -
São Bento Geração de Energia Solar 8 (1) - -
Três Reis Geração de Energia Solar 206 (1) - -
Campestre Geração de Energia Solar 10 (1) - -
Capim Branco Geração de Energia Solar 15 (2) - -
Cruzeiro Geração de Energia Solar 14 (2) - -
Papagaio Geração de Energia Solar 10 - - -
Pimenta Geração de Energia Solar 38 - - -
São Gotardo Geração De Energia 32 4 - - -
Piumhi Geração De Energia 33 4 - - -
Mato Verde Geração de Energia Solar 1 1 - -
Frutal Geração de Energia Solar 3 - - -
Santa Martha Geração De Energia 29 4 - - -
Ponte Alta Geração De Energia 34 4 - - -
Marimbondo Geração de Energia Solar 23 12 - - -
Jacauna Geracao De Energia 35 3 - - -
Melgaco Geração De Energia 31 5 - - -
Poutrinha Geração De Energia 37 2 - - -
Vertentes Geração De Energia 39 1 - - -
Petrolina Geração De Energia 38 3 - - -
Parnamirim Geração De Energia 40 1 - - -
Bananal Geração De Energia Solar 46 4 - - -

64,842 59,834 - -

Provision for losses on subsidiaries 2 19 - -

Investees
Sol + Lar - 91 - 91

Total investments 64,844 59,944 - 91
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13. Investments (Continued)

a) Changes in investments in subsidiaries

Changes in investments in subsidiaries stated in the individual financial statements are as follows:

Changes in 2020

Opening balances
- 2019

Capital
increase/reserves

Future capital
contribution Dividend payment Equity pickup

Disposal/assignme
nt and transfer of

units of
interest/write-off

Closing balances -
2020

Finco 289 - - - (36) - 253
João Pinheiro 5,742 - 1 (908) 421 - 5,256
Ebes ADM 1,012 316 (284) - 3,774 - 4,818
Tiradentes (c) 14,898 - - (1,356) 218 (13,760) -
São Francisco lll 4 19 (6) - (11) - 6
Sagarana 9,530 576 (576) - 1,629 - 11,159
Janauba ll 749 - 7,786 - 962 - 9,497
Manga l 7,813 7,888 (7,598) - 2,640 - 10,743
Pampulha(d) 697 - - - 3 (700) -
Francisco De Sa ll(d) 16,868 2,685 (1,538) (385) 1,644 2,239 21,513
Janauba Floresta (d) 582 - - - 35 (617) -
São Francisco Angicos (21) 65 (23) - (10) - 11
Brasília De Minas (d) 856 - - - 99 (955) -
Várzea Da Palma (1) 6 10 - (11) - 4
Six Energy 829 - 8 - (6) - 831
Barreiro (2) 3 22 - (19) - 4
Buriti (1) 3 208 - (51) - 159
Irai De Minas (1) 3 202 - (36) - 168
Lagoa Grande (1) 3 22 - (11) - 13
Lambari (1) 3 115 - (119) - (2)
Santa Rosa (1) 3 93 - (34) - 61
São Bento (1) 3 49 - (43) - 8
Três Reis (1) 3 239 - (35) - 206
Campestre (1) 1 28 - (18) - 10
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13. Investments (Continued)

a) Changes in investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in 2020

Opening balances
- 2019

Capital
increase/reserves

Future capital
contribution Dividend payment Equity pickup

Disposal/assignme
nt and transfer of

units of
interest/write-off

Closing balances -
2020

Capim Branco (2) 1 30 - (13) - 16
Cruzeiro (2) 1 29 - (13) - 15
Papagaio - 1 16 - (7) - 10
Pimenta - 1 153 - (117) - 37
São Gotardo - 1 12 - (9) - 4
Piumhi - 1 12 - (9) - 4
Mato Verde 1 15 (4) - (10) - 2
Frutal - 1 9 - (7) - 3
Terra Vista ll - 1 6 - (7) - -
Santa Martha - 1 6 - (3) - 4
Ponte Alta - 1 6 - (3) - 4
Marimbondo - 1 32 - (19) - 14
Jacauna - 1 8 - (5) - 4
Melgaco - 1 11 - (7) - 5
Poutrinha - 1 6 - (6) - 1
Tres Amores - - 5 - (5) - -
Vertentes - - 4 - (4) - -
Petrolina - - 6 - (4) - 2
Parnamirim - 1 3 - (3) - 1
Princesa Dos Canaviais - 1 3 - (3) - 1
Campos Novos - 1 2 - (3) - -
Bananal - 1 3 - - - 4

59,834 11,613 (884) (2,649) 10,726 (15,154) 64,842
Provision for losses on subsidiaries 19 - - - - - 2
Non-subsidiaries
Sol + Lar (e) 91 - - - - (91) -

59,944 11,613 (884) (2,649) 10,726 (15,245) 64,844
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13. Investments (Continued)

a) Changes in investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in 2019

Opening balances -
2018

Capital absorption/
goodwill Capital increase

Future capital
contribution Dividend payment Equity pickup

Closing balances -
2019

Finco Assessoria Financeira 249 - 93 - - (53) 289
João Pinheiro Solar 5,816 - - - (755) 682 5,743
EBES Administradora de Consórcios 51 - 1 315 - 645 1,012
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar 12,070 - - 1,209 - 1,619 14,898
São Francisco III Geração de Energia Solar - - 1 19 - (16) 4
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar 9,761 - 10,000 (9,424) - (807) 9,530
Janaúba II Geração de Energia Solar 483 - 501 (193) - (42) 749
Manga Geração de Energia Solar 197 - 214 7,384 - 18 7,813
Pampulha Geração de Energia Solar 705 - 725 (712) - (21) 697
Francisco de SA II Geração de Energia Solar 13,528 - - 2,684 - 655 16,867
Janaúba Floresta Geração de Energia Solar 308 - 628 (326) - (28) 582
Mato Verde Geração de Energia Solar - - 1 15 - (15) 1
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Solar - - 1 65 - (87) (21)
Brasília de Minas Geração de Energia Solar - - 1 881 - (26) 856
Várzea de Palmas Geração de Energia Solar - - 1 6 - (8) (1)
Six Energy Desenvolvimento de Negócios - 828 72 - - (71) 829
Barreiro Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (5) (2)
Buriti Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Capim Branco Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - (2) (2)
Irai de Minas Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Lagoa Grande Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Lambari Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
São Bento Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Santa Rosa Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Três Reis Geração de Energia Solar - - - 3 - (4) (1)
Campestre Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - (1) (1)
Cruzeiro Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - (2) (2)
Papagaio Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - - -
Frutal Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - - -
Pimenta Geração de Energia Solar - - - - - - -

43,168 828 12,239 1,947 (755) 2,407 59,834

Provision for losses on subsidiaries - - - - - 19 19

Non-subsidiaries
Sol + Lar 41 - 50 - - - 91

43,209 828 12,289 1,947 (755) 2,426 59,944
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13. Investments (Continued)
b) Investee balances

The balances of assets, liabilities, equity and profit or loss of subsidiaries are as follows:
Subsidiaries Interest held - % Assets Liabilities Equity P&L (*)

Finco Assessoria Financeira Ltda 100 250 - 250 (36)
João Pinheiro Solar Ltda 100 7,772 1,897 5,876 422
EBES Adm de Consórcios Ltda 100 5,175 358 4,818 3,774
Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. (c) - 26,925 14,385 12,540 218
Sagarana Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 100 36,241 25,239 11,002 1,623
Manga Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 100 29,405 19,723 9,682 2,361
Francisco SA II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 100 92,963 71,474 21,489 1,757
Janauba II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 100 28,454 18,958 9,496 961
Mato Verde Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 1 - 1 (10)
São Francisco III Geração de Energia Ltda 99.90 6 1 6 (11)
São Francisco Angicos Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 394 312 82 (11)
Varzea de Palmas Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 3 - 4 (11)
Six Energy 99.00 831 - 831 (6)
Barreiro Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 3 - 3 (19)
Buriti Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 163 4 159 (51)
Capim Branco Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 15 - 15 (13)
Irai de Minas Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 173 6 167 (36)
Lagoa Grande Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 13 - 13 (11)
Lambari Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 3,405 3,408 2 (119)
São Bento Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 707 699 8 (43)
Santa Rosa Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 61 - 61 (34)
Três Reis Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 209 4 206 (35)
Campestre Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 10 - 10 (18)
Cruzeiro Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 14 - 14 (13)
Papagaio Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 10 - 10 (7)
Frutal Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 3 - 3 (8)
Pimenta Geração de Energia Solar Ltda 99.90 1,534 1,497 38 (117)
Marimbondo Geracao de Energia Solar 23 Ltda. 99.90 14 - 14 (19)
São Gotardo Geracao De Energia 32 Ltda. 99.90 4 - 4 (9)
Piumhi Geracao De Energia 33 Ltda. 99.90 4 - 4 (9)
Melgaco Geracao De Energia 31 Ltda. 99.90 5 - 5 (7)
Terra Vista ll Geracao De Energia 30 Ltda 99.90 - - - (7)
Santa Martha Geração De Energia 29 Ltda. 99.90 4 - 4 (3)
Ponte Alta Geração De Energia 34 Ltda. 99.90 4 - 4 (3)
Poutrinha Geracao De Energia 37 Ltda. 99.90 2 - 2 (6)
Tres Amores Geracao De Energia 36 Ltda. 99.90 - - - (5)
Jacauna Geracao De Energia 35 Ltda. 99.90 3 - 3 (5)
Vertentes Geração De Energia 39 Ltda 99.90 1 - 1 (4)
Petrolina Geração De Energia 38 Ltda 99.90 3 - 3 (4)
Parnamirim Geração De Energia 40 Ltda 99.90 1 - 1 (4)
Princesa Dos Canaviais Geração De Energia 41 Ltda 99.90 - - - (3)
Campos Novos Geração De Energia 42 Ltda 99.90 - - - (3)
Bananal Geração De Energia Solar 46 Ltda. 99.90 4 - 4 -

234,789 157,965 76,835 10,416

(*) The differences between P&L of subsidiaries and equity pickup refer to elimination of gains on inventories/supplies sold by the parent company.
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13. Investments (Continued)

c) Disposal of Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda.

On June 22, 2020, the totality of the units of interest of the subsidiary Tiradentes Geração
de Energia Solar Ltda. (5 MWac) were sold to Fundo de Investimento em Participações
em Infraestrutura Solar I, administered by Casaforte Investimentos S/A (Note 1).

The subsidiary’s sale value was of R$12,100, as stated in the purchase and sale
agreement. The value of the final closed transaction, with the increases as defined in the
agreement, totaled R$13,277, fully received by the Company in June 2020.

This transaction resulted in a loss to the Company of R$483 in 2020. The amount of
R$250 was added to this total referring to the subsidiary’s expenses paid by the parent
company, totaling a loss of R$733, according to Note 24.

d) Corporate reorganization

As part of the Company’s corporate reorganization, on August 27, 2020, the companies
Brasília de Minas Campo Lindo Geração de Energia Solar Ltda., Janaúba Floresta
Geração de Energia Solar Ltda., and Pampulha Geração de Energia Solar Ltda. were
merged into the subsidiary Francisco Sá II Geração de Energia Solar Ltda., which
established three branches in the cities of Francisco de Sá-MG, Janaúba-MG and Brasília
de Minas-MG on September 21, 2020.

e) Changes in investments in associates

In May 2018, the Company acquired 40% interest in Sol + Lar S.A., without obtaining
control.

In 2020, management of Sol + Lar decided to discontinue its operations and, as such, the
balance invested by the Company was fully written off.
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14. Property, plant and equipment

a) Balances

Average
annual

depreciation
rate %

Individual
2020 2019

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

Provision for
losses Net Net

Machinery and equipment 10 297 (111) - 186 209
Furniture and fixtures 10 584 (185) (42) 357 389
Tools 10 106 (45) - 61 67
IT equipment 20 976 (555) - 421 408
Leasehold improvements 20 361 (217) - 144 92
Vehicles 20 214 (177) - 37 107
Communication equipment 20 112 (83) - 29 39
Facilities 10 42 (9) - 33 34
Leased machinery and equipment - Solar
Farm (i) 10 and 0.33 622 (343) - 279 341

Assets in use/operation 3,314 (1,725) (42) 1,547 1,686
Plant under construction - Solar Farm (a) - 3,836 - - 3,836 20,660

7,150 (1,725) (42) 5,383 22,346

Average
annual

depreciation
rate - %

Consolidated
2020 2019

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

Provision for
losses Net Net

Machinery and equipment 10 297 (111) - 186 209
Furniture and fixtures 10 584 (185) (42) 357 388
Tools 10 106 (45) - 61 67
IT equipment 20 976 (555) - 421 409
Leasehold improvements 20 361 (217) - 144 93
Vehicles 20 214 (177) - 37 107
Communication equipment 20 112 (83) - 29 39
Facilities 10 42 (9) - 33 33
Leased machinery and equipment - Solar

Farm (i) 10 and 0.33 154,690 (7,290) - 147,400 5,223
Assets in use/operation 157,382 (8,672) (42) 148,668 6,568
Plant under construction - Solar Farm (a) - 7,220 - - 7,220 177,157

164,602 (8,672) (42) 155,888 183,725
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14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

b) Changes in property, plant and equipment

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019 are as follows:

 Individual

2019 Additions Write-offs Depreciation

Transfers
(Notes 9
and 11)

Provision
for losses 2020

Machinery and equipment 209 - (29) 5 - - 185
Furniture and fixtures 389 83 (72) (2) - (42) 356
Tools 67 - (2) (4) - - 61
IT equipment 408 179 (14) (154) - - 419
Leasehold improvements 92 89 - (38) - - 143
Vehicles 107 - (146) 76 - - 37
Communication equipment 39 - - (10) - - 29
Facilities 33 7 - (3) - - 37
Leased machinery and

equipment - Solar Farm (i) 342 - - (62) - - 279
Assets in use/operation 1,686 358 (263) (192) - (42) 1,546
Plant under construction -

Solar Farm (a) 20,660 - - - (16,823) - 3,837
22,346 358 (263) (192) (16,823) (42) 5,383

Individual
2018 Additions Write-offs Depreciation 2019

Machinery and equipment 247 3 - (41) 209
Furniture and fixtures 265 171 - (47) 389
Tools 79 1 - (13) 67
IT equipment 380 152 - (123) 409
Leasehold improvements 21 82 - (11) 92
Vehicles 195 - (79) (10) 106
Communication equipment 55 - - (16) 39
Facilities 8 27 - (2) 33
Leased machinery and equipment -
Solar Farm (i) 404 - - (62) 342

Assets in use/operation 1,654 436 (79) (325) 1,686
Plant under construction - Solar Farm
(a) 2,620 18,040 - - 20,660

4,274 18,476 (79) (325) 22,346
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14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

b) Changes in property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Consolidated

2019 Additions
Write-offs

(ii) Depreciation
Transfers
(Note 9)

Provision
for losses 2020

Machinery and equipment 209 - (30) 6 - - 185
Furniture and fixtures 388 83 (71) (2) - (42) 356
Tools 67 - (2) (4) - - 61
IT equipment 409 179 (15) (154) - - 419
Leasehold improvements 94 87 - (38) - - 143
Vehicles 107 - (146) 76 - - 37
Communication equipment 39 - - (10) - - 29
Facilities 33 8 - (5) - - 36
Leased machinery and
equipment - Solar Farm (i) 5,223 334 (27,444) (4,874) 174,162 - 147,400

Assets in use/operation 6,568 690 27,707 5,005 174,162 (42) 148,666
Plant under construction -
Solar Farm (a) 177,156 14,864 - - (184,798) - 7,222

183,724 15,554 (27,707) (5,005) (10,636) (42) 155,888

Consolidated
2018 Additions Write-offs Depreciation 2019

Machinery and equipment 247 3 - (41) 209
Furniture and fixtures 264 171 - (47) 388
Tools 78 2 - (13) 67
IT equipment 380 153 - (124) 409
Leasehold improvements 22 82 - (11) 93
Vehicles 195 - (77) (10) 108
Communication equipment 55 - - (16) 39
Facilities 8 27 - (2) 33
Leased machinery and equipment - Solar Farm (i) 5,497 - - (274) 5,223
Assets in use/operation 6,746 438 (77) (538) 6,569
Plant under construction - Solar Farm (a) (iii) 83,882 94,998 - (1,724) 177,156

90,628 95,436 (77) (2,262) 183,725

(i) Refers to equipment owned by the Company and its subsidiaries that are leased to energy generation consortia and depreciated over the
term of the respective agreements.

(ii) Write-offs of Leased machinery and equipment - Solar Farm refer to sale of the subsidiary Tiradentes Geração de Energia Solar Ltda.,
described in Note 13.

(iii) Additions refer mainly to costs incurred with the construction in progress of photovoltaic generation units (solar farms) in the subsidiaries
listed in Notes 1 and 13.
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14. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Changes in the Plant under construction - Solar Farm refer to:

(a) Segregation of connection amounts to the group of other assets, in the amount of
R$10,636, individual and consolidated (Note 9).

(b) Acquisition of equipment and components for Solar Farm connections, which were
acquired by the parent company and subsequently transferred to the respective
subsidiaries via debit note, in the amount of R$6.187, according to Note 11, in the
individual statements.

As described in Notes 18 and 19, certain property, plant and equipment items of the Company
and its subsidiaries were pledged as collateral for loans, financing and debentures.

Management did not identify evidence that would require recognition of additional provision for
impairment of noncurrent assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.

15. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

As mentioned in Note 2.1, the Company adopted CPC 06 (R2) - Leases for the first time on
January 1, 2020.

Company - 12/31/2020
Right-of-use asset

Buildings and
improvements Vehicles

IT
equipment Total

Lease
liabilities

First-time adoption at 01/01/2020 719 608 57 1,384 1,384
Additions - 154 - 154 154
Depreciation (354) (341) (17) (712) -
Interest - - - - 88
Payments - - - - (768)
Balance at 12/31/2020 365 421 40 826 858

Current - - - - 604
Noncurrent - - - - 254
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15. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (Continued)

Consolidated - 12/31/2020
Right-of-use asset

Land
Buildings and
improvements Vehicles

IT
equipment Total

Lease
liabilities

First-time adoption at
01/01/2020 5,568 791 608 57 7,024 7,024

Additions 5,553 - 154 1 5,708 5,708
Depreciation (303) (361) (341) (18) (1,023) -
Interest - - - - - 909
Payments - - - - - (1,596)
Balance at 12/31/2020 10,818 430 421 40 11,709 12,045

Current - - - - - 1,906
Noncurrent - - - - - 10,139

The right-of-use asset was measured at cost, consisting of the initial measurement value of the
lease liability and amortized on a straight-line basis until the end of the lease term or the useful
life of the identified asset, as the case may be.

The recognized lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the minimum payments
under the agreements, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Company's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liability recognized in the
statement of financial position on the first-time adoption date was 7.52% p.a. to 11.34% p.a.,
varying according to the maturity of each lease. To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Company used as a reference the last DI x fixed curve made available in 2020 and the
credit spread on the issue of the debentures.

16. Intangible assets

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Goodwill (Note 22.b) 945 1,164 1,772 1,992
Software 438 212 437 212
Promotion of products 9 16 9 16
Set Up - Solar Farm (a) - 12,158 14,408 12,719

1,392 13,550 16,626 14,939

(a) Set Up - Solar Farm balance refers to investments made to form the consortia’s customer portfolio.
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16. Intangible assets (Continued)

Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Individual

Average
annual

amortization
rate - % 2019 Additions Amortization

Transfers/
Reclassification

(Note 11) 2020

Goodwill 10 1,164 - (219) 945
Software 20 212 315 (89) - 438
Promotion of products 20 16 - (7) - 9
Set up - Solar Farm 20 12,158 5,855 - (18,013) -

13,550 6,170 (315) (18,013) 1,392

Average annual
amortization rate - % 2018 Additions Amortization 2019

Goodwill 10 1,383 - (219) 1,164
Software 20 212 65 (65) 212
Promotion of products 20 30 - (14) 16
Set up - Solar Farm 20 4,787 7,372 - 12,159

6,412 7,437 (298) 13,550

Consolidated

Average
annual

amortization
rate - % 2019 Additions Amortization Write-offs 2020

Goodwill 10 1,991 - (219) - 1,772
Software 20 213 314 (89) - 438
Promotion of products 20 16 - (7) - 9
Set up - Solar Farm 20 12,719 5,844 (3,602) (555) 14,407

14,939 6,158 (3,917) (555) 16,626

Average annual
amortization rate - % 2018 Additions Amortization 2019

Goodwill 10 1,383 828 (219) 1,992
Software 20 213 65 (65) 213
Promotion of products 20 30 - (14) 16
Set up - Solar Farm 20 5,346 7,372 - 12,718

6,972 8,264 (298) 14,939
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16. Intangible assets (Continued)

The investments made for the development of the customer portfolio were initially incurred by
the Parent Company in the sales period and, when the solar farm became operational, the
amounts were then transferred, by means of an expense sharing debit note, to the subsidiary
that owns the Solar Farm, matched against the Related parties account (Note 11).

The expenses for formation of the solar farm's customer portfolio include:
Advertising/promotion and events, expenses with sales personnel (payroll, commissions,
among others).

Recognition of Set up - Solar Farm amounts is in accordance with CPC 04 - Intangible assets,
meeting the requirements for identification, control and future economic benefits, amortized
over the useful life of the customer portfolio.

The amount written off in 202 refers to the sale of the subsidiary Tiradentes Geração de
Energia Solar Ltda.

17. Trade accounts payable

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Domestic suppliers 4,714 4,829 4,983 6,209
Foreign suppliers - 1,053 - 1,053

4,714 5,882 4,983 7,262

These refer to purchases of materials for preparation and development of solar photovoltaic
generators, equipment for the construction of solar farms, services payable, purchase of office
materials, among others.
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18. Loans and financing

a) Loans and financing

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Loans and financing (a) 46,639 12,686 98,066 126,799
Bank - credit balance - - - 6
Derivatives (b) - 416 - 416

46,639 13,102 98,066 127,221

Current 22,938 11,217 27,781 50,507
Noncurrent 23,701 1,885 70,285 76,714

46,639 13,102 98,066 127,221

Individual

Type of financing
Interest

rate Currency Maturity 2019
Amounts

raised
Accrued
interest

Interest
paid

Principal
paid 2020 Current Noncurrent

Working capital 4.80% Real Aug/21 - 3,500 84 (80) (1,750) 1,754 1,754 -
Agreement (FRN) 2.72% USD Jun/20 4,882 - 1,556 (86) (6,352) - - -
Solar Farm Financing 14.68% Real May/23 2,670 - 221 (226) (2,665) - - -
Working capital 0.86% Euro Aug/20 5,134 - 2,463 (22) (7,575) - - -
Working capital 4.50% Real Aug/22 - 10,000 246 (2) (145) 10,099 6,025 4,074
Working capital 4.50% Real Aug/21 - 5,000 95 (78) - 5,017 5,017 -
Working capital 3.75% Real Apr/21 - 3,000 120 (98) (1,910) 1,112 1,112 -
Working capital 6.54% Real Oct/23 - 6,000 123 (82) - 6,041 1,152 4,889
Working capital 11.75% Real Dec/22 - 6,000 28 - - 6,028 1,793 4,235
Working capital 6.73% Real Aug/24 - 8,400 244 (238) - 8,406 940 7,466
Working capital 8.47% Real Mar/24 - 4,050 133 (104) - 4,079 1,042 3,037
Working capital 12.28% Real Mar/21 - 3,039 232 (187) (3,084) - - -
Working capital 5.00% Real Feb/21 - 3,966 198 (198) (3,966) - - -
Working capital 6.00% Real Mar/21 - 1,955 124 (124) (1,955) - - -
Working capital 6.00% Real Mar/21 - 2,726 176 (80) (1,273) 1,549 1,549 -
Working capital 6.00% Real Jun/21 - 2,452 102 - - 2,554 2,554 -

12,686 60,088 6,145 (1,605) (30,675) 46,639 22,938 23,701
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18. Loans and financing (Continued)

a) Loans and financing (Continued)

Consolidated

Type of financing Interest rate Currency Maturity 2019
Amounts

raised
Accrued
interest

Interest
paid

Principal
paid 2020 Current Noncurrent

Working capital 4.80% Real Aug/21 - 3,500 84 (80) (1,750) 1,754 1,754 -
Agreement (FRN) 2.72% USD Jun/20 4,882 - 1,556 (86) (6,352) - - -
Solar Farm Financing 14.68% Real May/23 2,670 - 221 (226) (2,665) - - -
Working capital 0.86% Euro Aug/20 5,134 - 2,463 (22) (7,575) - - -
Working capital 4.50% Real Aug/22 - 10,000 246 (2) (145) 10,099 6,025 4,074
Working capital 4.50% Real Aug/21 - 5,000 95 (78) - 5,017 5,017 -
Working capital 3.75% Real Apr/21 - 3,000 120 (98) (1,910) 1,112 1,112 -
Working capital 6.54% Real Oct/23 - 6,000 123 (82) - 6,041 1,152 4,889
Working capital 11.75% Real Dec/22 - 6,000 28 - - 6,028 1,793 4,235
Working capital 6.73% Real Aug/24 - 8,400 244 (238) - 8,406 940 7,466
Working capital 8.47% Real Mar/24 - 4,050 135 (104) - 4,081 1,042 3,037
Working capital 12.28% Real Mar/21 - 3,039 232 (187) (3,084) - - -
Working capital 5.00% Real Feb/21 - 3,966 198 (198) (3,966) - - -
Working capital 6.00% Real Mar/21 - 1,955 124 (124) (1,955) - - -
Working capital 6.00% Real Mar/21 - 2,726 176 (80) (1,273) 1,549 1,549 -
Working capital 6.00% Real Jun/21 - 2,452 102 - - 2,554 2,554 -
Solar Farm Financing IPCA + 1.5358% Real Jun/33 20,046 - 1,117 (440) - 20,723 2,057 18,666
Working capital 4.50% Real Mar/20 35,130 - 850 (980) (35,000) - - -
Solar Farm Financing SELIC + 5.12% Real Oct/24 13,705 - 389 (522) (13,572) - - -
Solar Farm Financing TLP + 5.4976% Real Aug/28 7,116 - - - (7,116) - - -
Solar Farm Financing SELIC + 5.50% Real Nov/29 15,914 - 1,298 (1,412) (146) 15,654 1,800 13,854
Solar Farm Financing SELIC + 5.50% Real Jun/29 15,059 - 1,247 (1,258) - 15,048 986 14,062
Solar Farm Financing SELIC + 6.50% Real Aug/28 7,144 - - - (7,144) - - -

126,800 60,088 11,048 (6,217) (93,653) 98,066 27,781 70,285

Working capital loans range from the absence of collateral to assignment in trust of a
restricted account or of financial investments (Note 5).

The loans contracted for Capex financing (Solar Farm project) are guaranteed by
assignment in trust of receivables and contract of land use rights, chattel mortgage of units
of interest and equipment, in addition to personal guarantee.

As at December 31, 2020, the Company is in compliance with the contractual conditions
agreed upon in the loan and financing agreements.

Noncurrent loan and financing installments mature as follows:
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18. Loans and financing (Continued)

a) Loans and financing (Continued)

Maturity Individual Consolidated

2022 15,124 20,226
2023 6,373 11,542
2024 2,204 7,412
2025 - 5,208
2026 - 5,208
2027 - 5,208
2028 - 5,208
2029 - 3,865
2030 - 1,847
2031 - 1,692
2032 - 1,726
2033 - 1,143

23,701 70,285

b) Derivatives

In order to hedge against exposure to currency fluctuation of the loan in foreign currency,
the Company took out a derivative financial instrument (Swap) in 2019, not designated for
hedge accounting, as follows.

As of December 31, 2020, foreign currency loans had been settled and, as such, there
were no more derivative financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Receivables Payables

Type
Notional

value Maturity Rate
Balance at
12/31/2020 Rate

Balance at
12/31/2020 Balance

SWAP EUR1,130 06/2020 EUR + 2.28% p.a. - DI + 3.75% p.a. - -
SWAP USD1,210 06/2020 USD + 5.4% p.a. - DI + 3.98% p.a. - -

- - -

Receivables Payables

Type
Notional

value Maturity Rate
Balance at
12/31/2019 Rate

Balance at
12/31/2019 Balance

SWAP EUR1,130 06/2020 EUR + 2.28% p.a. - DI + 3.75% p.a. (127) (127)
SWAP USD1,210 06/2020 USD + 5.4% p.a. - DI + 3.98% p.a. (289) (289)

- (416) (416)
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19. Debentures
2020 2019

Debentures (a) 51,805 -
(-) Issue costs to be appropriated (b) (1,593) -

50,212 -
Current 6,653 -
Noncurrent 43,559 -

50,212 -

a) Debentures

Type of
financing

Interest
rate Currency Maturity 2019

Amount
raised

Accrued
interest

Interest
paid

Principal
paid 2020 Current Noncurrent

Debentures
CDI +
4.5% Real Mar/27 - 50,000 2,618 (813) - 51,805 6,934 44,871

- 50,000 2,618 (813) - 51,805 6,934 44,871
(-) Issue costs to be appropriated (b) (1,593) (281) (1,312)

50,212 6,653 43,559

On March 9. 2020, the subsidiary Francisco Sá raised funds via capital market, through
first issue of junior nonconvertible debentures, in the amount of R$50,000. The debentures
were issued to make the investments required for implementation of photovoltaic
generation plants and full settlement of the debt balance of the Issuer's obligations
(subsidiary).

The amount consists of a single series, bearing interest of CDI + 4.5% and with a term of
seven years from the issue date, maturing, therefore, on March 9, 2027, with (i) monthly
payment of interest as from October 2020 and (ii) monthly repayment of principal as from
March 2021.

The debentures are guaranteed by chattel mortgage of shares of the subsidiary Francisco
Sá II, as well as the units of interest of the other Company subsidiaries, distribution of
profits as dividends or interest on equity, or bonus and other forms of distribution,
machinery and equipment of the subsidiary Francisco Sá II and of the other subsidiaries,
assignment in trust of receivables and contract of land use rights, in addition to personal
guarantee.
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19. Debentures (Continued)

a) Debentures (Continued)

At any time after the Issue Date, the Issuer may, at its sole discretion, offer early or partial
redemption of the Debentures addressed to all Debenture Holders, who are ensured,
without distinction, equal conditions to accept the redemption of the Debentures held,
under the terms of this Issue Indenture and applicable legislation including, but not limited
to the Brazilian Corporation Law.

The debentures will have automatic early maturity should the issuer does not comply with
any of the conditions provided for in the Issue Indenture, among which is the nonpayment
of the obligations of this instrument, extinction and discontinuance of activities, default of
any financial obligation assumed, substantial change in the business purpose of the
subsidiary and other Company subsidiaries, among others.

As of December 31, 2020, the Company and the subsidiary are compliant with the
contractual conditions agreed in the debenture indenture.

The payment schedule of the noncurrent balance of the debentures is as follows:

Maturity Amount

2022 8,206
2023 8,469
2024 8,315
2025 8,655
2026 8,934
2027 2,292

44,871

b) Issue costs to be appropriated

These refer to transaction costs incurred in raising funds through a debenture debt
instrument, accounted for as a reduction in the initial fair value, according to Accounting
Pronouncement CPC 08 (R1) - Transaction costs and premiums on the issue of
marketable securities.
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20. Labor obligations and related charges

Individual
and Consolidated

2020 2019

Bonuses payable 2,460 2,139
Accrued vacation pay and related charges 1,340 1,095
Social Security Tax (INSS) 1,097 640
Unemployment Compensation Fund (FGTS) 107 201
Salaries payable 1,450 1,186
Other 330 165

6,784 5,426

21. Share-based payment

The Company has a long-term incentive plan granted to its managing officers and employees,
elected by the Board of Directors and who freely choose to join the plan. This is considered a
payment based on Phantom shares, settled in cash. Accordingly, the Company receives the
services, but is under no obligation to settle the transaction.

The Phantom share grant plan establishes that certain Company officers appointed by the
Board of Directors receive share appreciation rights. The acquisition of the right to the
Phantom shares granted will be subject to a grace period of 0 to 5 years.

After completing the grace period of each installment of the Phantom shares and upon
occurrence of a Liquidity Event, the Participant is entitled to receive, in cash, the gross amount
corresponding to the appreciation of the Phantom share since the Grant Date, calculated as
follows:

Phantom share gain = (A - B) x C

Phantom share gain = cash amount payable to the Participant

A = The amount corresponding to (i) the price determined for 1 (one) common share issued by
the Company, upon occurrence of a Liquidity Event; or sale price of 1 (one) common share
issued by the Company, upon occurrence of Liquidity Event due to Sale.

B = Corresponds to the issue price of 1 (one) common share, and this price is set based on the
estimated fair value at the time of signature of each contract with the selected Officers. The
issue price is restated by reference to IPCA/IBGE from the Grant Date.

C = number of Phantom shares of the Participant.
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21. Share-based payment (Continued)

If there has been no appreciation of the Phantom shares in the Liquidity Event, the Participant
will not be entitled to receive any amount or compensation, for any purposes, and all conditions
of the grant are extinguished, to be considered already fulfilled.

If, within the period of 15 (fifteen) years as from the Grant Date, there is no occurrence of a
Liquidity Event, all Phantom shares will be automatically canceled, generating no right to the
Participant. On the other hand, the Participant will receive, in cash, the amount corresponding
to the appreciation of the Phantom shares from the Grant Date to the date of the 15th (fifteenth)
anniversary of the grant, as shown below. “Anniversary” means each period of 12 (twelve)
months from the Phantom share Grant Date.

The granting of Phantom shares is detailed below:

Date Number of shares Maturity (average)
Fair value in reais

(average)

2014 13,000 4 23.78
2015 9,500 5 27.93
2016 37,000 5 27.77
2017 80,000 3 39.58
2018 45,156 3 29.92
2019 49,500 4 31.20
2020 4,500 3 44.95

The accumulated effect resulting from this plan for the year ended December 31, 2020 was of
R$5,699, accounted for as share-based payment expenses (R$405 as of December 31, 2019).

22. Equity

a) Capital

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, capital totals R$196,369, represented by 4,227,721
registered common shares with no par value.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2019, Company shares are held as follows:

2020 and 2019

Shareholders
Number of

shares Interest held

TPG Art I Fundo De Investimento em Participações Multiestratégia em Investimentos no Exterior 2,334,763 55%
Mitsui & Co.; Ltd. 713,142 17%
MOV Investimentos Ltda. 708,116 17%
Other 471,700 11%

4,227,721 100%
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22. Equity (Continued)

b) Reserves

Goodwill reserve

On March 31, 2015, former parent company TPG ART Participações 1 S.A. was merged
into the Company, generating a goodwill reserve of R$2,211, based on a report prepared
by independent experts, to be amortized over 10 years (Note 16).

Capital reserve

On April 12, 2019, a capital contribution of R$R$5,576 was made by Mitsui & Co Ltd.,
used to repurchase shares from Sustainable Equity Investments S.A. for R$R$4,973, with
a remaining reserve balance of R$R$603.

c) Dividend payment

As per the articles of incorporation, the Company is required to pay mandatory minimum
dividends of 25% of net income computed for each year. Considering the losses recorded,
dividends were not paid out as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

23. Net operating revenue

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenue from goods sold 3,654 21,147 2,686 10,588
Revenue from services rendered 665 95 47,178 13,662
(-) Returns (902) - - -
(-) Taxes on revenue (499) (2,094) (2,400) (1,631)

2,918 19,148 47,464 22,619
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24. Breakdown of costs and expenses by nature

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Raw materials, materials and third-party services (1,664) (16,113) (4,201) (6,019)
Third-party services (11,780) (4,039) (15,141) (5,072)
Employee salaries and benefits (24,942) (18,482) (24,942) (18,522)
Share-based payments (5,284) (405) (5,284) (405)
Leases (469) (606) (442) (844)
Transportation, travel and meals (1,727) (2,361) (1,727) (2,361)
Depreciation and amortization (1,000) (489) (9,725) (2,435)
Tax expenses 104 (785) (304) (2,326)
Materials and supplies (900) (1,304) (908) (1,306)
Provision for civil, tax and labor contingencies 3 5 3 285
Provision for realization of taxes 28 (184) 28 (184)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 12 35 12 35
Loss on disposal of investments (Note 13) (733) - (733) -
Loss on investment in affiliate (Note 13) (91) - (91) -
Other revenues and expenses 257 282 (1,004) 241

(48,186) (44,446) (64,459) (38,913)

Cost of services rendered and products sold (3,343) (17,353) (12,042) (9,432)
General and administrative expenses (44,020) (27,267) (51,574) (29,616)
Other operating income (expenses), net (823) 174 (843) 135

(48,186) (44,446) (64,459) (38,913)

25. Finance income (costs)

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Finance costs
Bank charges (414) (215) (2,316) (1,241)
Interest, fines and discounts (2,738) (784) (13,009) (3,607)
Exchange losses (3,257) (1,439) (3,258) (1,439)

(6,409) (2,438) (18,583) (6,287)
Finance income
Short-term investment yield 318 1,076 590 1,788
Interest income and discounts 866 2,069 176 229
Exchange gains 3,260 885 3,260 883

4,444 4,030 4,026 2,900

(1,965) 1,592 (14,557) (3,387)
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26. Income and social contribution taxes

As of December 31, 2020, the Company, which adopts the taxation regime whereby taxable
profit is based on accounting records, computed income and social contribution tax losses of
R$117,078 (R$75,028 as of December 31, 2019) for which no deferred income and social
contribution tax credits were recognized, since there is no expectation of future taxable profit.

All Company subsidiaries adopt the taxation regime whereby taxable profit is computed as a
percentage of gross revenue. In 2020, some subsidiaries earned revenue and, therefore, were
subject to payment of income and social contribution taxes.

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Loss before income and social
contribution taxes, including
discontinued operations (38,524) (24,610) (33,569) (22,991)

Income and social contribution taxes -
rate of 34% 13,098 8,367 11,413 7,817

Equity pickup (3,541) (818) - -
Deferred income tax not set up (9,557) (7,549) (9,557) (7,549)
Effect of subsidiaries’ taxable profit

computed as a percentage of gross
revenue - - (6,811) (1,887)

- - (4,955) (1,619)

27. Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, such as cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments, trade accounts receivable, advances, other receivables,
loans and financing, debentures, trade accounts payable, obligations payable to partners and
related parties, and other obligations are recorded at book values, which approximate fair
values, according to criteria mentioned in the corresponding explanatory notes on accounting
practices. These instruments are controlled through operational strategies aimed at liquidity,
profitability and security, and are permanently monitored by the Company management.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company held derivative financial instruments to
mitigate risks associated with its financial instruments. In the year, the Company did not make
speculative investments in derivatives or other risk assets. The results are consistent with the
policies and strategies defined by the Company management.

Classification of the key financial instruments is presented below and there are no financial
instruments classified in categories other than the ones informed.
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27. Financial instruments (Continued)

Individual Consolidated
2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,592 1,128 26,580 20,192
Short-term investments 643 - 830 -
Trade accounts receivable 2,150 130 16,105 5,887
Financial instruments 831 - 831 -
Restricted cash 1,586 1,962 8,407 16,057
Related parties 28,691 26,160 1,259 973
Judicial deposits 108 152 108 152

52,601 29,532 54,120 43,261
Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable 4,714 5,882 4,983 7,262
Loans and financing 46,639 13,102 98,066 127,221
Debentures - - 50,212 -
Lease liabilities 858 - 12,045 -

52,211 18,984 165,306 134,483

28. Risk management

Management is responsible for establishing and overseeing the risk management structure,
and for monitoring and analyzing the economic and financial scenarios in order to identify the
risks to which the Company is exposed. Additionally, management maps potential impacts on
financial or economic variables that may affect the Company, such as fluctuations in exchange
rates, interest rates and/or other indicators.

Risk management policies were established in order to identify and analyze exposure risks and
define acceptable risk limits, and a control structure was created to monitor the risks and
compliance with the limits imposed. These policies and control structure are reviewed on a
regular basis.

a) Credit risk

This is the risk that the Company and its subsidiaries may incur losses due to failure of a
customer or a counterparty to a financial instrument in complying with their contractual
obligations.

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum credit risk exposure. The
maximum credit risk exposure as of the reporting date is as follows:
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28. Risk management (Continued)

a) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Individual
Note 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (i) 4 and 5 20,821 3,090
Trade accounts receivable and intercompany receivables (ii) 6 and 11 9,932 15,565
Financial instruments 7 831 -

31,584 18,655

Consolidated
Note 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (i) 4 and 5 35,817 36,249
Trade accounts receivable and intercompany receivables (ii) 6 and 11 23,887 21,322
Financial instruments 7 831 -

60,535 57,571

(i) Banks: these amounts are held in first-tier financial institutions in order to mitigate credit risk in connection with these
operations.

(ii) Trade accounts receivable: management seeks to mitigate portfolio default risk by monitoring and periodically assessing
its customers on a one-by-one basis.

New customer acceptance criteria include analysis of the financial condition and social-
economic profile, with definition of credit limits and payment terms. Analysis of this
information by the Company and its subsidiaries may include bank references.

Credit limits are established for each customer, individually, and represent the maximum
exposure amount accepted for that customer. These limits are reviewed whenever
necessary or requested. Customers that have no approved credit limits are only served by
means of prepayment.

b) Market risk

This is the risk that variations in market prices such as exchange rates, interest rates and
price of raw materials will affect the gains of the Company or the amount of its investment
in financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control exposures to market
risks, within acceptable parameters and, at the same time, optimize return.
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28. Risk management (Continued)

b) Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

At December 31, 2020, the Company does not record assets or liabilities denominated in
foreign currency.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company had outstanding trade accounts payable balance,
as per Note 17.

Interest rate risk

This risk arises from the possibility that the Company and its subsidiaries will record gains
or losses due to fluctuations in the interest rates on their financial assets and liabilities. In
order to mitigate this type of risk, the Company seeks to diversify fundraising in terms of
fixed and floating rates.

Price risk

This risk derives from the possibility of fluctuation in market prices of the products sold or
manufactured by the Company and its subsidiaries and of the other inputs used in
production. These price variations may cause significant changes in revenues and costs of
the Company and its subsidiaries. To mitigate these risks, the Company and its
subsidiaries continuously monitor domestic markets and seek to anticipate price changes.

c) Liquidity risk

In managing liquidity risk, the Company and its subsidiaries monitor and maintain cash
and cash equivalents at a level that is appropriate for funding their operations and
mitigating the effects of cash flow variations.

The table below details the remaining contractual maturity of the Company’s and its
subsidiaries’ financial liabilities. The table was prepared according to undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company and its
subsidiaries are required to settle their respective obligations. The table includes interest
and principal cash flows. As interest flows are based on floating rates, the undiscounted
amount was based on the interest curves at year end.
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28. Risk management (Continued)

c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Up to 3
months

3 months to 1
year Above 1 year

Total
undiscounted

cash flows

Trade accounts payable 1,724 3,012 665 5,401
Loans and financing 13,662 48,833 185,440 247,935
Debentures 848 6,085 44,872 51,805

29. Insurance coverage

The Company's property, plant and equipment items are guaranteed by insurance contracts
with coverage determined by specialists, taking into account the nature and degree of risk, for
amounts considered sufficient by management to cover possible significant losses on its
assets and liabilities.

30. Subsequent events

Corporate reorganization

On January 2021, the subsidiary João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. merged and, consequently, on
February 1, 2021, established the opening of branches of the following companies for the book
values raised on the same date:

SÃO BENTO GERAÇÃO DE ENERGIA SOLAR 17 LTDA., with head office in the city of Frutal,
state of Minas Gerais, at Rua Sebastião Rodrigues da Silveira, s/n, KM 04, Fazenda São
Bento da Ressaca, Área Rural, CEP 38,200-000, becoming a branch of João Pinheiro Solar
Ltda. as from February 1, 2021;

LAMBARI GERAÇÃO DE ENERGIA SOLAR 20 LTDA., a limited liability company with head
office in the city of Monte Carmelo, state of Minas Gerais, at Rodovia MG 190, s/n, KM 03, à
esquerda, Zona Rural, CEP 38,500-000, becoming a branch of João Pinheiro Solar Ltda. as
from February 1, 2021;

PIMENTA GERAÇÃO DE ENERGIA 28 LTDA., a limited liability company with head office in
the city of Pimenta, state of Minas Gerais, at Estrada Pimenta Vila Costina, s/n, KM 01,
Fazenda Capão da Lenha, Zona Rural, CEP 35,585-000, becoming a branch of João Pinheiro
Solar Ltda. as from February 1, 2021.
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30. Subsequent events (Continued)

Corporate reorganization (Continued)

The merger of the subsidiary Ebes Administradora de Consórcio Ltda. by the parent company
Ebes Sistemas de Energia S.A. was authorized by management through minutes dated
November 30, 2020. On February 18, 2021, the registration of the minutes of merger was filed
with the São Paulo Commercial Registry (JUCESP) and the merger process was carried out.

Issue of Certificate of Real Estate Receivables

In February 2021, with a view to raising funds for the construction and development of 10
MWac referring to three new solar farms, and financing 0.99MWac already in operation,
totaling 10.99 MWac of generation capacity, a Certificate of Real Estate Receivables (CRI) was
issued in the amount of R$80 million, through the subsidiary João Pinheiro Solar Ltda.

The CRI, issued to finance solar farms, has as guarantee the chattel mortgage of contract of
land use rights, chattel mortgage of units of interest, in addition to personal guarantee lasting
until the completion and development of the three new solar farms.

The total amount assigned in December 2020 is of R$4,670, corresponding to the balance of
PPE of the subsidiary João Pinheiro Solar.


